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2.1. Mining

Silver mine "Bernias" , Spain, 1612-1621
2.1.1.1 Prospectus for the silver mine "Bernias" in the dehesa Villagutieres in Spain with a copy

of a Spanish estimation of costs and profits dated 18 September 1615, 1621.
2.1.1.2 Assay with caption: "Assayen van de pelluren". Inside are two little bags with a monster

of the metal and a monster after melting, 1612.

2.2. Industry

Beer, Brussels 1441
2.2.1.1 Extract from the "Bouck metten Haire" of the consent by Mayors and Aldermen of

Brussels to the cloister of Sint Elisabeth int Warmoesbroeck dated 22 June 1441 to brew
tax-free hopped beer for their own use.

Franciscus van der Sanden, vinegar, Duffel 1776
2.2.2.1 Permit by the States of Brabant for Franciscus van der Sanden to brew 7 tuns of vinegar

beer in the brewery of the widow De Noter in Duffel. Rumpst, 12.05.1776.

Sugar refinery, Amsterdam 1746
2.2.3.1 Estimate of the inventory of a sugar refinery by Arnoldus Pacheman and Christiaan

Muller, Amsterdam 19.02.1746.

Maria and Tresia Bucquoi, salt refiners?, Bruges 1699
2.2.4.1 Tax stamp of 4 Schelling accompanying a copy of the royal ordinance on the refining of

salt dated 13 April 1699 annex to a petition by Maria and Tresia Bucquoi from Bruges.

Thirion Maes Woutersz. and Joris Blieck, drapers?, Lierre 1564
2.2.5.1 Thirion Maes Woutersz. and Joris Blieck pledge before Aldermen of Lierre their

possessions for a debt to Peeter Govaerts in Antwerp resulting from the purchase of 200
"schyven caerden". Discharge on backside, 1564.



Garnmanufaktur Gumpendorf , 1801-1802
2.2.6.1 “Urkunden Wien. Akten über Spinnerei.” Wrapper (empty).
2.2.6.2 Agreement between Oberdirektion der Commerzial- Leih- und Wechselbank and med.

Dr. Menrad Dopfer, 1801.
2.2.6.3 Protest by Karl Frey & Kolbielski against distraint on their property in a trial between

cord merchant Johan Michael Thomas and foreman John Lever, 1802.
2.2.6.4 Letter by John Lever to mr De Haitel concerning wool carding for the company, 1802.

Georg Michel Hartung?, weaver, 1801-1809
2.2.7.1 Book with intricate designs for weaving linen tissues in diverse colours, and some

samples, 1801 [from loose note]
2.2.7.2 Account by Georg Michel Hartung, May 1798-August 1800; certificate of good character

for master weaver Wilhelm Hartung, Ickelheim 22.10.1809; draft of German letter on
Amsterdam tobacco wrapper; weaving patterns, 1809 [from character certificate].

2.2.7.3 Weaving sample in three colours, with pattern.

Calico-printing works,  Dambrugge, 1769
2.2.8.1 Conditions for the customers of the calico-printing works in Dambrugge, printed 1769.

Boudewijn Breijel , tapestry maker, 1633-1647
2.2.9.1 Copy on request of Boudewijn Breijel of the del credere by the late Johannes Briselius

SJ, dated 19 September 1633, for two chambers of tapestries of Hercules and Cyrus,
delivered to the Conte de Comit in Palermo, 1647.

Gerard d'Amiens, silk weaver? 1744
2.2.10.1 Inventory of the contribution by Gerard d'Amiens to the marriage community with

Theresia Broeker after their marriage contract, Antwerp 1744.

Tailors, 1556-1776
Jan Baudart, tailor, 1566-1570
2.2.11.1 Current account by tailor Jan Baudart [name in pencil], 1566-1570.
Jacques Kerstens, tailor, 1678
2.2.11.2 Receipt by Jacques Kerstens to bailiff Jan Berck for deliverance of trousers for

“hermscoeten”, 1678.
J.B. Goemans, tailor, 1776
2.2.11.3 Receipt by tailor J.B. Goemans for mr. Van den Berck for his account over January-

March 1776.

Antwerp sawing-mills, 1767-1776
2.2.12.1 Invoice by the Antwerp sawing-mills to Henricus Coninckx over 1767-1776.

J. Pienard, paper mill, 1612
2.2.13.1 J. Pienard agrees to provide Simon Jacobs every three months with 50 bales of assorted

paper at fixed prices during a year, 1612.

Pierre Jean Bauwens, paper mill, Brussels 18th century 
2.2.14.1 Petition by Pierre Jean Bauwens for a subvention from the States of Brabant because he

built a new paper mill in Den Driesmolen near Brussels when his mill in Diegem burnt
down.

Jehan Vrancx, merchant, Antwerp 1583
2.2.14.2 Offer by Jehan Vrancx, merchant, to deliver cards to Fernando Martin, having a licence

from the King, after their agreement from last year, 8 June 1583.



2.2.14.3 Testimony by Fernando Martin, Portuguese merchant in Antwerp, that the cards proved
to be not as good as the agreed sample when they arrived in Lisbon, 14 June 1583.

2.2.14.4 Summons on behalf of Jehan Vrancx to Fernando Martin to accept the cards, with the
refusal by Martin, 1 August 1583.

Broer Jansz, printer, Amsterdam 1611 
2.2.14.5 Davidt die Meijne promises secrecy on the invention concerning copperplate printing

that Broer Jansz will reveal to him in order to decide whether he will take part in it, 1611.

Jan van Meurs, printer, Antwerp 1639-1641
2.2.14.6 Printing contract between Jan van Meurs, printer, and Theodore Thuldens for the book

"Pompa triumphalis introitus Ferdinandi Antuerpiae", 1639.
2.2.14.7 Invoice to Theodore van Tulden by Joan van Meurs for printing the "Pompa triumphalis

introitus Ferdinandi Antwerpiae" which is paid by the city, 1641.
2.2.14.8 Transcriptions of 2.2.14.6-7.

Cornelis Cornelisz, lime-burner, Leiden 1597
2.2.15.1 Cornelis Cornelisz, lime-burner gets permission to build a lime kiln in Leiderdorp,

outside the walls, 1597

Matheus Du Quesne and Ferdinando Janssens, glass makers, Antwerp 1672-1673
2.2.16.1 Petition by Matheus Du Quesne, master in the Christallen Glashuis, concerning his

company with Ferdinando Janssens.
2.2.16.2 Petition by Matheus Du Quesne and Ferdinando Janssens, founders of the

“Gelasenhuijs”, 28.12.1672.
2.2.16.3 Balance for the glassworks in Antwerp in 1673.

Ironmongery, Roër, 1810.
2.2.17.1 Petition by the representatives of the departements Roër, Ourthe, Sambre-et-Meuse,

Nord, Ardennes and Jemappes against a projected tax on ironmongery. Paris, 06.02.1810.

Henrick vande Bossche, harness maker, 1575 
2.2.18.1 Account by harness maker Henrick van de Bossche to Marten Meyen over 1574.

J.M. Schalmij, plate-worker, Amsterdam 1806
2.2.19.1 Licence (patent) for J.M. Schalmij to exercise the profession of plate-worker in

Amsterdam in the year 1806.

Andreas Gabriel Atzula, journeyman goldsmith, 1688
2.2.20.1 Letter by journeyman goldsmith (Goldarbeitergeselle) Andreas Gabriel Atzula to his

master, mentioning the Countess of Stubenberg, 1688.

Maria Anna Bom, widow of Joseph Claessens, diamond cutter, Antwerp 1735-1740
2.2.21.1 Invoice for the cutting of diamonds for mr Caria by I.B Claessens, 1735-1737.
2.2.21.2 Invoice for the cutting of diamonds for mr Caria by I.B Claessens, 1735-1737.
2.2.21.3 Abandonment by Joannes Caria to the widow Claessens of a painting and a crucifix to

pay her claim on him from the proceeds, 11 June 1740.
2.2.21.4 Proxy by Maria Anna Bom, widow of Joseph Claessens in her case against Joan Caria for

wages for the cutting of diamonds, 25 June 1740.
2.2.21.5 Petition to mayors and aldermen of Antwerp by the widow of Joseph Claessens that she

may sue Jan Caria for payment of the cutting of diamonds by her son. Granted 27 June
1740.



Conraert Meye , sculptor, Brussels? 1513-1534
2.2.22.1 The Governess Mary of Hungary demands freedom of servitudes for the German sculptor

Conraert Meye because he served the late Archduchess for 21 years, 1534.

Lucas van Breda, bricklayer, 1628-1641
2.2.23.1 Invoice by bricklayer Lucas van Breda to Peeter Jacobsen over 1628-1629, Copy 1641.

Quienet, upholsterer, Antwerp 1713
2.2.24.1 Invoice for the theatre of mr. Evrard in the Pruimestraat by the upholsterer Quienet,

1713.



2.3. Services

Lottery , 1563-1765
2.3.1.1 Subscriptions for Charles de Franceschy. Specified sums will be paid to him if he returns

in Venice from his voyage to Egypt and the Holy Land. Antwerp, 13.02.1563.
2.3.1.2 Transcription of 2.3.1.1.
2.3.1.3 Promise by cooper Peeter Hanegrefs to Peeter van Wesenbeke to pay his six lottery

tickets after the drawing. Main price is the house "Den Os". Antwerp, 07.03.1571.
2.3.1.4 Petition to the States of Brabant by creditors of Gerardt Gramaye, director of the Imperial

Lottery, now emprisoned for debts to the States. Brabant. See also J.A.L. Velle, Special
Collections 566/2/f.

2.3.1.5 Copy from the "Gebodtboek" of an ordinance against gambling. Antwerp, 13.11.1601.
2.3.1.6 Ordinance against wagers on the surrender of Bois-le-Duc and Ostend and other wagers

for money. Brussels, 13.11.1601.
2.3.1.7 Wager between Jacques Mille and Leonardo Robarto, agreed 1 May 1623, that Mille will

not marry within a year. Antwerp, 24.03.1627.
2.3.1.8 Conditions for a royal lottery of 20.000 x 200 guilders, by the widow Nettine, running

from 1756-1765. She will receive 500.000 guilders a year on the import and export duties
during those years.

Land Surveyors, 1603-1718
2.3.2.1 Report by land surveyor Hendrick Cannaerts measuring a farm in Berentrode on request

of Arnoult Baert, councillor in the Great Council of Mechelen. Malines, March 1603.
2.3.2.2 Imperial admission as land surveyor in Brabant and Limburg for Pierre Philippe Riquier.

Brussels, 24.09.1718.

Fencing master, Antwerp 1594
2.3.3.1 Testimony by Guillaume le Roy on request of Estienne Bastiaens concerning a fencing

accident by a bungler. Antwerp, 14.12.1594.
2.3.3.2 Testimonies by fencing master Jacques Lansloots and Hans de Bie concerning a fencing

accident by a bungler. Antwerp, 15.12.1594.

Francois Moins, publican, 1582
2.3.4.1 Account by Francois Moins for refreshments to captains and skippers and hire for storage

of tapestry during four years.



2.4. Shipping

2.4.1. Insurance forms, 1697
2.4.1.1 Six blank insurance forms, three signed on top by A. van Anont, 1697. See also

Documentatie Verzekeringen, Special Collection 575/B3/2b.

2.4.2. Cargo
Herring , 1551-1554
2.4.2.1 Current account for shipowners on lasts of herring, [15]51-[15]55, dated 31.03.[15]54.
Ship “Jesus”, 1558
2.4.2.2 Account on merchandise in the ship “Jesus” of skipper Gonçalo Diaz from Porto, 1558.

2.4.3. Antonio de Boot, 1561-1564
2.4.3.1 Notes about primes on policies on cargo, a.o. for Antonio de Boot, 1562-1563 with

comment: "tis verlies wel besien".
2.4.3.2 Account for Antonio de Boot resulting from policies on ships and loans, [15]61-64.

2.4.4. Jullien le Febvre, 1562
2.4.4.1 Charter by Jullien Le Febvre in Antwerp to Nicolaes Dierikson, skipper of the "Job", to

sail with a cargo of rye and herring to Nantes and to return with wine and plums. Antwerp,
1562.12.09.

2.4.5. Insurance broker, 1564-1565
2.4.5.1 Extract of six policies from account books dated 21 February 1564-20 September 1565 on

which should be paid damages.
2.4.5.2 Extract of six policies from account books dated 1 February 1564-26 January 1565.
2.4.5.3 Extract of six policies from an account book dated 31 January 1564-24 November 1564.
2.4.5.4 Extract of five policies from an account book A dated 1 February 1564-13 June 1564.
2.4.5.5 Extract of a policy from an account book dated 19 May 1564.
2.4.5.6 Extract of four policies from an account book dated 16 May 1564-24 May 1564.
2.4.5.7 Extract of four policies from an account book A dated 18 March 1564-23 April 1564.
2.4.5.8 Extract of seven policies from an account book dated 6 March 1564-2 February 1565.

2.4.6. Jehan vs Pierre de la Rea Salasar, 1564-1565
2.4.6.1 French translation from the Spanish concerning the taxation of the ship "St. Mathieu" and

its cargo owned by Pierre de la Porrea, 1564.
2.4.6.2 Current account between Jehan and Pierre de la Rea Salasar, signed 29 December 1564.
2.4.6.3 French translation of a Spanish petition, a debenture anno 1560 and an account 1560-1562

by Jehan de la Rea Salasar against his uncle, Pierre de la Rea Salasar, captain of the
galleon "St. Mathew", 1565.

2.4.7. Guillaume Ruwyn vs Pedro Dorosco, 1564-1565
2.4.7.1 Plea in the case between Guillaume Ruwyn and Pedro Dorosco concerning a policy on a

ship sailing from Nobre de Dis to Puerto Rico or San Domingo, but through a tempest
landing in Cuba.

2.4.7.2 Legal document concerning the trial of Pedro Doroso against Guillaume Ruwyn, 1564.
2.4.7.3 Notes in the case between Philippe Cattaneo and Pedro Dorosco, June 1564-September

1565.
2.4.7.4 Plea in the case between Pedro Dorosco and Guillaume Ruwyn concerning a policy on a

ship sailing from Nobre de Dis to Puerto Rico or San Domingo.
2.4.7.5 Plea in the case between Pedro Dorosco and Guillaume Ruwyn, 1565.

2.4.8. Companies on Sweden and Narwa, ca. 1565-1576 [Prims XX, 268]



2.4.8.1 Viglius opposes a petition by Philip van Asseliers a.o. to the Governess to protest against
the capture of neutral Spanish ships by Sweden because of an imperial interdict to trade on
the Narwa that was unknown to them.

2.4.8.2 Legal notes about ordinances from 1540.
2.4.8.3 Legal notes.
2.4.8.4 Legal notes.
2.4.8.5 Petitioners started their trade on the Narwa two years ago because of the war between

Sweden and Denmark. Now passage is refused although they don't carry contraband and
Russia and Spain are neutral.

2.4.8.6 Incomplete copy of 2.4.8.5.
2.4.8.7 Petition to the Governess by Jacques de la Vocanti a.o. charterers of the ships "Sinte

Pauwels Bekeringe" and "Sinte Michiel" from Antwerp to Danzig which were seized by
the King of Sweden.

2.4.8.8 Letter announcing that shipping from the Narwa is not impeded by the Swedish or the
Danish King, 1566.

2.4.8.9 Appeal by Antwerp Jesuits on behalf of Arnoldus Fabri a.o. Antwerp merchants to
interfere with the Swedish king in favor of Belgian merchants who did not pay customs.
Antwerp, 1576.08.16.

2.4.9. Pedro and Diego Lopez Aleman, 1568-1576
2.4.9.1 Policy dated 22 May 1568 to Pedro Lopez Aleman on cargo in the ship "Falcon", skipper

Juan Dirico, sailing from Antwerp to Lisbon.
2.4.9.2 Policy dated 28 May 1568 to Lopez Aleman and Antonio Doloronha in Antwerp on cargo

in the ship "El Siervo Dorado", skipper Jacques Aldernes, sailing from Antwerp to Santa
Cruz.

2.4.9.3 Policy dated 18 August 1568 to Diego Lopez Aleman on the ship "El Mezeman", captain
Lieven Pieters from Amsterdam, sailing from Faron in Algarve to Antwerp.

2.4.9.4 Policy dated 18 August 1568 to Diego Lopez Aleman on the ship "El Mezeman", captain
Lieven Pieters from Amsterdam, sailing from Antwerp to Faron in Algarve.

2.4.9.5 Invoice for a policy on the ship “El Mezeman", skipper Lieven Pieters, to Diego Lopez
Aleman, 1568.

2.4.9.6 Policy dated 21 October 1568 to Pedro Lopez Aleman on cargo in the ship "El Leon",
skipper Arie Cornelis, sailing from Antwerp to Lisbon, 23.10.1568.

2.4.9.7 Current account for Willem van Tartebeeck from the books kept by Diego Lopez Aleman
on the estates of his deceased parents, translated from the Portuguese by J. Raspaille,
29.08.1576.

2.4.10. Jan Dircks Montfoert, 1577
2.4.10.1 Letter by Hendrick Dircxs van Santen to Jan Dircks Montfoert accompanying a shipment

of 300 daalders with alternatives for shipments of wheat or rye together with Claes
Adriaensen van Adrichem or with Gerrit Jansz. Delft, 1577.05.09.

2.4.11. Joris Kieffelt, 1582-1597 [Prims XIX: 1579-1581 and 1585-1613 secretary of Antwerp]
2.4.11.1 Testimonies by Pedro Amado and Augostin Perera on two cargos of sugar for account of

Baltasar and Bartolomeo Fernandez Das Nevez that were seized by Manuel de Silva
Conde de Torres on Tercera, 1582.

2.4.11.2 Policy dated 11 December 1595 to Jorge Kieffel on a case of linen from Middelburg to
Sevilla, 1595.

2.4.11.3 Account for cargo shipped from Sevilla to Antwerp for George Kieffelt, 1597.
2.4.11.4 Letter to George Kieffelt in Antwerp, 1597.



2.4.12. Ship "Den Pellicaen", 1585
2.4.12.1 Summons on behalf of the sheriff of the Land van Waes to Aerdt Moys to revoke his arrest

because of mortgage on the seized heude-ship "Den Pellicaen". Antwerp, 1585.09.10.

2.4.13. Michiel du Moulin, 1585-1601
2.4.13.1 Copy of a policy dated 9 January 1585 by Michiel de Moulin to Lambrecht Buycx on a

cargo of salted pork sailing from Dordrecht to Antwerp in the heude of skipper Peeter de
Costere.

2.4.13.2 Policy dated 9 December 1585 to Lambrecht Buycq on salted pork in the ship of Pieter de
Coster sailing from Holland to Antwerp, 1585.

2.4.13.3 Current account for Peeter and Michiel du Molin by Jan Deschamps, 1589.
2.4.13.4 Michel du Molin promised 23 June 1589 in Antwerp to pay 400.000 guilders to Giovanni

Francisco Balbi e Fratelli on the Frankfurt Midlent Fair. The sum is changed by the
following transactions, 1589.

2.4.13.5 Exemption from the billetting of troops for Michel du Molin in Merksem, 1594.
2.4.13.6 Copy of an account by Jean Deschamps to Peeter and Michiel du Molin, signed by them

on 23 July 1587, 1601.

2.4.14. Jacques le Martin and Simon Suero, 1586 See the same, Special Collections 138
2.4.14.1 Simon Suero, Portuguese merchant, will take in as an apprentice Jacques, son of Louis Le

Martin, merchant, for three years, 1586.

2.4.15. Decio Doria, Antonio Veluti & Orfeo Amati, 1591-1594
2.4.15.1 Policy dated 8 October 1591 to Decio Doria, Antonio Veluti and Orfeo Amati in Antwerp

on wheat in the ship "Angel Gabriel", skipper Herman Reders, sailing from Hamburg to
Leghorn.

2.4.15.2 Policy dated 8 October 1591 to the same on wheat in the ship "Angel Rafael" of skipper
Henrico Buchemayer sailing from Hamburg to Genoa or Leghorn, 1591.

2.4.15.3 Policy dated 18 November 1591 to the same on wheat in the ship "El Moro" of skipper
Dirick Rode, sailing from Lubeck to Leghorn, 1591.

2.4.15.4 Dutch translation from the Spanish of 2.4.15.3; transcription by Velle.
2.4.15.5 Dutch translation from the Spanish of 2.4.15.3, 1594.
2.4.15.6 Policy dated 5 February 1592 to the same on wheat in the ship "El Sanson", skipper

Hendrique Cornieles, sailing from Vlissingen to Genoa, 1592.
2.4.15.7 Copy of a decision by the Commission for Insurance and Average, dated Antwerp 28

October 1593, concerning a cargo of grain from Lubeck to Genoa and Leghorn which was
not completely lost. The damage is spread over 34 insurers, 1593.

2.4.16. Jehan, Chrisostomo, Guillermo and Baltasar van Immerseel, 1591-1707 [Stols I, 196-227]
[See the same, Special Collections 139]
2.4.16.1 Current account between the Brothers (?) Van Immerseel and Johan Bouty, 1599-1603.

Jan sr (1550-1610) 
2.4.16.2 Invoice for a cargo of grain by skipper Matt. Janss van Flylant for account of Jehan van

Immerseel and messrs. Poulles, to Poulles in Amsterdam.
2.4.16.3 Invoices for primes dated 1591 to Jan van Immerseel from Le Havre to Sevilla on ships of

skipper Felipe Selart and "La Perla" of skipper Jacques Bison on the back of a policy to
Pedro van den Hil, 1591.

2.4.16.4 Invoice for linen sent from Rouen by order of Jehan van Immerseel to André Plamont in
Sevilla, 1594.

2.4.16.5 Manifest for 23 sacks of ginger for account of Jehan van Ymmerseel, consigned to Jehan
van Lovel on three different ships, 1597.



2.4.16.6 Invoice for bought and bleached linen sent to Middelburg for account of Jehan de Loemel
on different ships, 1597.

2.4.16.7 Invoice for linen in different ships for account of Jehan van Immerseel to Jehan de
Lommel in Middelburg?, 1598.

2.4.16.8 Proceeds from the sale of a cargo of grain for account of Jan Immerseel & Cy., shipped by
Geert Cornelisz Swerte Ruyter, 1598?

2.4.16.9 Invoice for a cargo of grain shipped by Gerrit Cornelisz. Swerte Ruiter for account of Jan
van Immerseel, Arnoult le Clercq and the widow Poulle to Lisbon on consignment of
Louis Godein, 1598.

2.4.16.10 Proceeds from the sale of sacks of madder shipped for account of Johan van Immerseel,
1599-1600.

2.4.16.11 Proceeds from the sale of sacks of madder shipped from Calais and Middelburg for
account of Johan van Immerseel, 1600-1601.

2.4.16.12 Invoice to Jan Immerseel for packing of tapestry, 1601.
2.4.16.13 Testimony by Thomas Butri on a shipment of candlesticks and paint-brushes sent through

Hamburg to Joannes van Immerseel in Sevilla that arrived incomplete, 1603.
Chrisostomo (1588-1654)

2.4.16.14 Account for Jacques de Lettere, 1614.
2.4.16.15 Account for Jacques de Lettere, 1614-1615.
2.4.16.16 Declarations by Martinus de Zoet; Justus Camps, Guillaume de Haze and Pieter Brassilius,

1618.07.05.
2.4.16.17 Declarations signed Chrisostomo van Immerseel, Jan Battista Goubau, Agustin Bosco,

Francisco de Robiano, Pietro Gobyn, Martin de Zoete? Duarte Ximenes, Jacques van
Buren, Jan Sonnius about bills of exchange, 1618.

2.4.16.18 Marie de Fourmestraulx, wife of Chrisostomo van Immerseel, will accompany Jacques,
son of Peeter Willemsen Cock, going as an apprentice to her husband in Sevilla, 1622.

2.4.16.19 Testimony by Nicolas Cazier concerning a case of linen from Bois-le Duc shipped by
Pieter van Oudenhoven in Gemert through Dunkirk on the ship of Enne Evertsen to
Chrisostomo van Immerseel in Sevilla, 1626.

2.4.16.20 Proceeds from the sale of a cargo of linen? for account of Christoval de Nouiller, 1626-
1627.

2.4.16.21 Current account between Chrisostome van Immerseel from Sevilla and Christofle de
Nouiller, 1624-1627.

2.4.16.22 Current account between Chrisostome van Immerseel from Sevilla and Christoval de
Nouiller, 1624-1626.

2.4.16.23 Testimony by Gerard Seth that Vincent Syoen from Bruges has packed "dos fardos con
hilera blanca y colorada" for Chrisostomo van Immerseel in Sevilla and bought it from
Vincent Schollaert and Willem Helaut, 1627.

2.4.16.24 Testimony concerning four bags of "duble leones" ordered by Chrisostomo van Immerseel
in Sevilla?, 1627.

2.4.16.25 Current account for Chrisostomo van Immerseel, June-December 1627.
2.4.16.26 Account for 12 sacks of wool sold by Dominide & Godefroit in Lille to Jacques de Lettere

in Antwerp, 1632.
2.4.16.27 Way-bill for a bureau and thread, shipped from Malines through David Hemssen in Dover

to San Lucar for account of Chrisostomo van Immerseel, 1635.
Guillermo (1592-1632) and Baltasar (1598-1620)

2.4.16.28 Dutch translation from the Spanish of a policy dated Sevilla 28 January 1618 to Guillaume
and Balthasar van Immerseel on cargo without bill of lading in the ship "De Duyve",
skipper Remeus Jacobsz., sailing from Cadiz to Zealand or Amsterdam, 1618.

2.4.16.29 Petition by Guillelmo van Immerseel to mayors and aldermen in a process against Jan
Thomas and Jacques de Lettere who refuse to pay on a policy mediated before 1590 by
broker Remeus Jacobsz., 1622.
Andries



2.4.16.30 Transfer by bailiff Jan de Vos on behalf of Count Crucquenbourg before aldermen of
Vichte of the manor "De Wostijne" near Antwerp to Andries van Immerseel, 1707. 

2.4.17. Carlos van Salingen, 1596-1601
2.4.17.1 Copy of a testimony by several merchants, a.o. Carlos van Zalingen, that trade between

Holland and Zealand and Biscay is allowed on ships that import grain to Biscay.
2.4.17.2 Bill of lading for the ship "Die Suerte Craeye", sailing from Danzig via England, Scotland

and Ireland to Lisbon with ten last of rye for Arent Moons to Gaspaer van den Berghe,
1597.

2.4.17.3 Policy dated 13 November 1597 to Carlos van Salingen in Antwerp on corn in the ship
"De Swarte Craye", skipper Jens Olofsen from Copenhagen, sailing from Danzig to
Lisbon. Payment of damages, 1597.

2.4.17.4 Testimony by Charles van Salingen concerning the policy on the ship "De Swerte Craeye"
which was seized by the English on its way from Danzig to Lisbon, 1598.

2.4.17.5 Testimony by Jan de Ras from Danzig before the magistrate of Copenhagen confirming
that the ship of Jens Oluffsen, "de Swerte Kreye", with 10 loads of rye was raided by the
English in 1597, 1600.

2.4.17.6 Dutch translation of 2.4.17.5.
2.4.17.7 Vidimus of the testimony before the city council of Copenhagen on the raiding of the ship

"De Swerte Kreye" by the English near the port of Lisbon dated 14 November 1600, 1601.
2.4.17.8 Dutch translation of 2.4.17.7.
2.4.17.9 Legal copy by Carlos van Zalingen of the manifest for a cargo of 10 last of rye which

Arent Moons in Danzig shipped through Jens Oeloussen in 1597, 1601.

2.4.18. Balthasar van Nispen, 1596-1607 [see also Adriaen van Nispen, and Cornelis van Nispen
(Special Collections nr. 319)]
2.4.18.1 Policy dated Amsterdam 10.09.1596 to Balthasar van Nispen in Amsterdam, on cargo and

ship "Zeeridder", skipper Wilm Willemsen Mande from Vlissingen, sailing from St.
Margriete to the Netherlands, 1596; transcription by Velle.

2.4.18.2 Letter to Balthasar van Nispen in Amsterdam specifying shipments for account of
Guillermo van Santfoort, 1596.

2.4.18.3 Current account for Adriaen and Balthasar van Nispen, a.o. with Francisco van Santfoort
for freight of the ship "St. Jan", skipper Jan Claesz Gortter, from Amsterdam to Venice,
1595-1597.

2.4.18.4 Account by Balthasar van Nispen concerning Guillamme van Santfort, 1594-1597.
2.4.18.5 Letter by Gillis Hoffman to Balthasar van Nispen in Amsterdam concerning insurance,

Bremen, 1596.01.16.
2.4.18.6 Three current accounts signed Balthasar van Nispen on insurances by Gillis Hoofman,

Francisco van Santfoort and Guillaume van Santfort, 1596-1597.
2.4.18.7 Copy of a letter by Marinus Pauss to Guillielmo van Santfoort in Bremen, 1597.
2.4.18.8 Copy of a letter by Marinus Pauss in Venice to Guillielmo van Santfoort in Middelburg

a.o. announcing the coming of Francisco van Santfoort, 1597.
2.4.18.9 Inventory of pieces sustaining the plea by Guilliam Maes in the case of Balthazar van

Nispen.
2.4.18.10 Dutch translation from the Latin and copies of accounts for Gillis Hoffman from Bremen

and Francisco van Santfoort concerning the cargo of the ship "De Salamander", skipper
Dierck Leynsen sailing from Middelburg to Leghorn in December 1596, 1598.

2.4.18.11 Copy of a letter by Adriaen van Nispen to Guillielmo van Santfoort, 1598.
2.4.18.12 Copies of a current account for the ship "Salamandra" 1597-1599 and a letter by Guillem

Sanfoort in Bremen to Francisco Vrints and Carlo Snellinck in Venice dated 7 July 1597,
1599.



2.4.18.13 Balthasar van Nispen insured 4 sacs of serge for Laurens Arnolfini, sailing from
Amsterdam to San Lucar on the ship of Cornelis van den Busch. The ship was seized at
Dunkirk. A. wants to settle the benefit with other premiums, 1599.

2.4.18.14 Letter to Caspar van Nispen, merchant in Amsterdam, on remittances of money, 1599.
2.4.18.15 Pledge by Gillis Hooftmans in Bremen, 3 September 1603 of a case of jewels for a bill of

exchange on Lodovico Perez and Giovanni Cesar Calandrini in Frankfurt by his brother-in-
law Antonio Anselmo. Antwerp, 1603.

2.4.18.16 Copy of a letter by Francisco Vrients dated Venice 20 June 1597 to Mr. Santfoort in
Bremen concerning business affairs together with his brother-in-law, the late Gillis
Hofmann, 1604.

2.4.18.17 Copies of testimonies before notary P. Wouters in the case of Gillis Hofmann by Francisco
van Santfoort, Jan Baptista van Hersbeke and Guillaume van Santfoort about the debt of
Balthazar van Nispen to Francisco van Santfoort, dated 13 August 1605.

2.4.18.18 Testimony by Marinus Pauss Pireynen on the cargo of the ship "De Salamander" to
Francisco Vrints and Carlo Snellinck for special account of the brothers Francisco and
Guillaume van Santfoort and his letters from Venice, 1607.

2.4.18.19 Testimony by Jan Baptista van Hersbeke on request of Francisco van Santfoort concerning
the arbitration towards Balthasar van Nispen, 1607.

2.4.19. Ship “Le Pigeon Blanc”, 1599
2.4.19.1 Average on linens from Rouen aboard the ship "Le Pigeon Blanc" skipper Yckart Macksch

sailing from Middelburg to Spain and seized by the English in June 1598, 1599. 

2.4.20. Jacques and Isaac Speeck, 1600-1602
2.4.20.1 Invoice by Salomon Le Cat to Michel Danvers for two casks of indigo shipped from San

Lucar by captain Jehan Roussel for Robert Wesson, 1600.
2.4.20.2 Invoice for textiles in "La Fleur-de-Lys" skipper Grand Jan Rorsel? sailing from Calais to

San Lucar freighted by Guillaume van Noort for account of Jacques and Isaac Speeck in
Antwerp, 1600.

2.4.20.3 Policy dated 23 November 1600 to Jacques and Isaac Speeck on linen, baize and other
merchandise in the ship "De Lelie", skipper Jan Roussel, sailing from Calais to Sevilla;
Damages to be paid 12 September 1602?

2.4.20.4 Dutch translation of a Spanish petition by Jacques Speeck, Dutch merchant in Sevilla
concerning three casks of baize arriving from Calais in San Lucar in 1600 and seized in
Sevilla as contraband from England, 1602.

2.4.20.5 Division of average on the policy for Jacques ende Isaack Speeck on cargo in the ship "De
Lelie", captain Jean Reuzel, sailing from Calais to San Lucar and Sevilla, 1602.

2.4.21. Baltasar Andrea, (1597) 1602-1610 [See the same, Special Collections 142]
2.4.21.1 Passport by the States General of the United Netherlands to Balthasar Andrea from

Cologne to travel with his tutor Andreas van Eyck through Holland to Antwerp and back,
1597.

2.4.21.2 Account by Henry de Beaulieu in Rouen to messrs De Conincq and Azuardo in Hamburg,
1602-1603.

2.4.21.3 Estienne Herault in La Rochelle sells Henry de Beaulieu in Rouen eighty 'cents' of salt by
the measure of the island Ré to be delivered on board in the roads of St. Martin of the
island of Ré, 1605.

2.4.21.4 Current account by Anthoine Frarin in Paris to Baltasar Andrea, 1602-1603.
2.4.21.5 Invoice for wax and textiles sent to Laredo in Biscay in the ship of Hans Haer on

consignment of Lucas Beckman for account of Balthasar Andrea, 1605.
2.4.21.6 Current account for the owners of the ship of Cornelis Hendricx on a voyage from San

Lucar to Hamburg. The dividend between Hendricx and Lucas Beckman is in German,
1605.



2.4.21.7 Current account for the owners Beckman, Dominicus van Ussel and Theunis Harmens
resulting from a charter by Lasarus Jerez from Hamburg to San Lucar. Skipper is Cornelis
Henricksen, 1605.

2.4.21.8 Invoice for textiles sent to Laredo in Biscay in the ship of Hans Koopman by order of
Balthasar Andrea for account of Garcia Delpeso, 1606.

2.4.21.9 Invoice for two cases of cinnamon shipped in Lisbon to Rouen by captain Nicolas Carel
for account of Balthasar Andrea and Henry de Beaulieu, 1608.

2.4.21.10 Invoice for grains bought in Bremen by Johann Klamp and Hermann Muller for Balthazar
Andrea in Antwerp, 1608-1609.

2.4.21.11 Invoice by Jean van Roomen to Balthazar Andrea for freight and further costs on two
packs of tapestry received from Antwerp, 1609.

2.4.21.12 Current account for Baltasar Andrea, 1609.
2.4.21.13 Notice of a policy on cargo in the ship of Thomas Hermanson sailing from Sevilla to

Venice, 1609.
2.4.21.14 Proceeds from the sale of seven cases of lacquer? sent from Lisbon to Rouen for account

of Balthasar Andrea, Henry de Beaulieu and Jehan Vel, 1609.
2.4.21.15 Proceeds from the sale of grain in London, wholly or partly for account of Balthazar

Andrea in Antwerp, 1609.
2.4.21.16 Invoice for textiles sent to Lisbon in three different ships for account of Balthasar Andrea

on consignment of Manuel Rodrigues Jorge, 1609.
2.4.21.17 Account by Jean Willemin to Baltazar Andrea, 1609-1610.
2.4.21.18 Invoice for costs on textiles that have been unloaded as being wet and afterwards sent to

Lisbon for account of Balthasar Andrea on consignment of Manuel Rodrigues Jorge, 1610.

2.4.22. Henrique Loons, 1603
2.4.22.1 Petition to the King by Henrique Loons from Antwerp, incarcerated in Brussels.

Commercial associations with Holland and Zealand being quite usual, he had interests in 7
convoys 1598-1602. Unfortunately one convoy from Sumatra and Achin seized a
Portuguese galleon near St. Helens, which was declared a good prize in Zealand, [1603].

2.4.23. Cosijn Censsen, 1603
2.4.23.1 Current account for the owners by skipper Cosijn Censsen on voyages to La Rochelle and

back to Middelburg by way of London; to Nantes and to the Canaries. Middelburg, 1603.

2.4.24. Claus Statius, 1606
2.4.24.1 Copies of a request and a testimony dated Hamburg 07.05.1599 by skipper Claus Statius

concerning an accusation of contacts with the enemy, by notary Hantzius; Dutch
translations by notary Ruebens in Antwerp. Antwerp, 1606.09.25.

2.4.25. Francisco Dambre, 1607-1608
2.4.25.1 Abandonment by Francisco Dambre of his wrecked ship "Le Pigeon", skipper Jean

Legendre, sailing with a cargo of grain from Rouen to Genoa, 1607.
2.4.25.2 Testimony before the "Admiralité de France, Siège Henricarville" on the shipwreck of "Le

Pigeon", 30 miles from Le Havre, by the skipper Jean Legendre and others, dated 23 May
1607.

2.4.25.3 Manifest of the ship "Le Pigeon", signed Jacinto Bayacho for Philippe Condi, 1607.
2.4.25.4 Dutch translation of 2.4.25.3.
2.4.25.5 Dutch translation of the policy for Francisco Dambra on the ship "Catharina", owner

Peeter Pimont from Le Havre, skipper Jacques Preudhomme, sailing from Rouen to
Leghorn, Vioreta, Civita Vieta or Genoa for account of Philippe Condi from Lyons, 1608.

2.4.26 Jeremias Blommaert, 1607-1609



2.4.26.1 Bill of lading for the ship "La Maria", skipper Jacques de la Porte, sailing from Calais to
San Lucar with cargo from Jeremias Blommaert to Martin Colins, 1607.

2.4.26.2 Policy dated 7 June 1607 for Christiaen Gillis on two casks of linen and one cask of
paintings on the ship "La Maria", captain Jacques de La Porte, sailing from Calais to San
Lucar or Sevilla to Jeremias Blommaert, 1609.

2.4.26.3 Copy of the policy dated 7 June 1607 for Christiaen Gillis on two casks of linen and one
cask of paintings on the ship "La Maria", captain Jacques de La Porte, sailing from Calais
to San Lucar or Sevilla to Jeremias Blommaert, 1609.

2.4.27. Sebastian Hernandez Farias, 1609
2.4.27.1 Policy dated 26 July 1607 to Sebastian Hernandez Farias in Las Palmas, on his ship

"Nuestra Señora del Valle", sailing from San Domingo to Sevilla with a report on damages
dated 15 May 1609.

2.4.28. Ship "St. Pieter", 1612
2.4.28.1 Testimonies by David Lossy and Jan Maerschalck before mayor and aldermen of Dunkirk

concerning the shipwreck of the "St. Pieter" of skipper Laurens Janssen on the island of
Wight, 1612.

2.4.28.2 Testimony by Pieter Antheunisse, 1612.
2.4.28.3 Testimonies by Pieter Claissesz and Stasen Stevensz before mayors and aldermen of

Vlissingen, 1612.
2.4.28.4 Testimony by Franchois Lespé, 1612.
2.4.28.5 Testimony by Gaspar de los Reyes, 1612.
2.4.28.6 Dutch translation of 2.4.28.5.
2.4.28.7 Testimony by Albrecht Claisse from Enkhuizen, 1612.
2.4.28.8 Testimony by Pieter de Coninck from Dunkirk, 1612.
2.4.28.9 Testimony by Nicolas van Hertinghe, 1612.
2.4.28.10 Testimony by Gaspar de los Reyes, 1612.
2.4.28.11 Dutch translation of 2.4.28.10.
2.4.28.12 Testimony by David Lossy, 1612.

2.4.29. Cornelis Janssens de Bisthoven, 1615-1617 [See the same, Special Collections 146]
2.4.29.1 Letters concerning the part ownerships in the ship of the late skipper Cornelis Janssen with

cargo from Lambrecht Tweenhuysen, 1615.
2.4.29.2 Proceeds from Campeachy-wood shipped by Cornelis Juans from Sevilla, 1615.
2.4.29.3 Testimonies on request of Lambrecht van Tweenhuysen that he had shipped in May 1615

twelve cables for account of Cornelis Jansen in Sevilla through skipper Jan Pietersen van
Wijenes, 1617.

2.4.29.4 Dutch translation of Spanish correspondence on a debt of 5.000 pounds by Andries
Laberne in Sevilla to Lambert van Tweenhuysen in Amsterdam, 1617.

2.4.30. Dierick Hoste, 1624
2.4.30.1 Invoice by Dierick Hoste for hides shipped on the "Exchange" skipper Henry Page from

San Lucar to Calais, 1624.

2.4.31. Nicolas Cassier Talauia, 1624-1638 [See the same, Special Collections 150]
2.4.31.1 Testimony before aldermen of Tournai by Jacques Coutelier that he transported 456 pairs

of stockings, fabricated in Tournai for account of Nicolas Cazier in Antwerp, to Lille by
way of Calais without passing rebel country, 1624.

2.4.31.2 Insurance policy dated 29 March 1638 to Nicolas Cassier Talauia, merchant in Antwerp,
on two sacks of merchandise in the ship of captain Jean Hiddy sailing from Dover to
Sevilla, 1638.



2.4.32. Geoffrey Darrald, St. Botulph’s, 1625
2.4.32.1 Thomas Philip mayor of Hull summons skipper Willem Person from Veere for harassment

of Geoffrey Darrald from St. Botulph’s. Hull, 1625.08.09 (92th year of the Anglican
Church).

2.4.33. Guilliaume van den Eynde, 1625-1631
2.4.33.1 Policy dated 9 July 1625 to Guilliame van den Eynde merchant in Antwerp on 103 cases of

sugar in the ship "St. Jacque", skipper Jan Jacque Inglois, sailing from Vianna in Portugal
to Dunes or Calais in France, 1625.

2.4.33.2 Verdict by the Insurance Commissioners of the Antwerp Exchange about a cargo of sugar
of Guillaume van den Ende sailing from Vianna in Portugal to Calais, that was seized by
the English in Dover, 1628.

2.4.33.3 Jan de Meester and Robert van Meulenbeke from Calais declare that they sold sugar from
the ship of Jan Jacobsen that July 1625 arrived safe in Dover; copy of the French
declaration that it sailed with 65 cases to London, 1628.

2.4.33.4 Dutch translations of the French testimonies in Calais by Ancel Clou, Pierre de Thesse a.o.
dated 16 September 1628 and by Ancel Clou and Mathieu Hesdin dated 16 December
1628 about the seizure in Dover, with the originals, 1630.

2.4.33.5 Gaspar Massis orders Guillaume Ganetier from Rouen not to accept a bill of exchange by
Guillaume van den Eynde to Anthonie Henricx and Jean Schuyl because he did not receive
the money from Van den Eynde, 1631.

2.4.33.6 Manifest (cargasoen) for a cargo of sugar on the "St. Jacob" shipped by Guillermo de
Cempener for account of Guillermo van den Enden on consignment for Roberto de la
Fontaine and François Friedrich in Calais, 1625.

2.4.33.7 Manifest (cargasoen) for a cargo of sugar in the "St. Jacob" shipped by Leonardo van Lem
for account of Guillermo van den Enden on consignment for Roberto de la Fontaine and
François Friedrich, 1625.

2.4.33.8 Guillelmo van den Eynde notifies the insurers that he abandons the cargo of sugar that is
seized by the British in London, 1626.

2.4.33.9 Merchants from Calais declare that the ship of Jens Jacob with 65 cases of sugar was
ordered to sail from Dover to London, 1626.

2.4.34. Diego Nuñes Vega, 1626-1631
2.4.34.1 Bill of lading by Joachim Dour, skipper on "De Hope", sailing from Hamburg to Bayonne

for Diego Nunes Vega with 199 plates of copper to Johannes de la Ragoien, 1626.
2.4.34.2 Bill of lading by Ratke Stubbe for a cargo of copper plates from Hamburg to Bayonne for

Diego Nunes Vega dated 24 April 1626 and copy of a receipt for the half freight dated 20
July 1626.

2.4.34.3 Dutch translations from the Portuguese of manifests for cargos of copper transported from
Hamburg in April 1626 by Joachim Dour and Rache Stubbe to San Sebastian and in
November 1627 by Jacob Michielsen and Andries Bruekeman to Lisbon, 1627.

2.4.34.4 Two policies for Diego Nunes Vega for voyages from Hamburg to Saint Jean de Luz and
San Sebastian dated March and April, which were cancelled due to a Dutch blockade,
remain valid for a new voyage, 1627.

2.4.34.5 Bill of lading for "De Hopinge", skipper Hendrich Broeckman, sailing from Hamburg to
Lisbon with a cargo of copper plates from Diego Nunes Vega to Jan Nunes Saraiba, 1627.

2.4.34.6 Bill of lading for the ship of skipper Jacob Michiels sailing from Hamburg with a cargo of
copper plates from Diego Nunes Vega to Jan Nunes Saraiva, 1627.

2.4.34.7 Affirmation by the insurers that they insured cargos of copper plates on the ship of Jacob
Michiels and Hendrick Broeckman sailing from Hamburg to Saint Jean de Luz or San
Sebastian for Diego Nunes Vega, 1628.



2.4.34.8 Copy of verdict between the Judge Advocate (advocaat-fiscaal) and Jacob Michielsz,
skipper of the "Coninck David". Ship and cargo, seized by Wilm Joosz Block in
Vlissingen, are released except the contraband after the inventory of February 24th, 1628.

2.4.34.9 Affirmation by Peter Heusch, Hamburg 13 October 1628 that insurers of the ship of
Jochum Dour with a cargo of copper plates for Diego Nunez Vega, to Bayonne and Saint
Jean de Luz, must pay 72% of the averages. The insurance is dated April 1626, 1631.

2.4.34.10 Affirmation by Peter Heusch Hamburg 13 October 1628 that insurers of the ship of Rache
Stobbe with a cargo of copper plates for Diego Nunez Vega to Bayonne and Saint Jean de
Luz must pay 72% of the averages. The insurance was dated March 1626, 1631.

2.4.35. Diego Enriquez and Abondia Somigliano, 1629-1632
2.4.35.1 Copy of the current account between Diego Enriquez and Abondia Somigliano from the

Portuguese account book of Benito Enriquez, merchant in Hamburg, 1627-1629.
2.4.35.2 Copy from a printed general sentence by presides et iudices magni senatus rerum

bellicarum maiestatis catholicae dated Madrid 21 June 1629 on the connection between
payment of primes and the obligation to pay damages, 1631.

2.4.35.3 Copy from a general sentence by the Insurance Chamber of the Republic of Genoa dated
Genoa 21 September 1629 on the connection between payment of primes and the
obligation to pay damages, 1631.

2.4.35.4 Testimony by several persons stating that Benito Henriquez, Portuguese broker from
Hamburg, always paid the primes on policies for Portuguese and Dutch merchants, 1631.

2.4.35.5 Dutch translation of 2.4.35.4, 1632.
2.4.35.6 Copy of an invoice by Abondio Somigliano to Benito Henriques for several policies and a

Dutch translation by notary Robert Oudart that is copied by the Antwerp notary P. de
Breuseghem, 1631.

2.4.35.7 Copy of a translation by R. Oudart, notary in Hamburg, of the current account 1627-1629
between Diego Enriquez and Abondia Somiglianno from the Portuguese account book of
Benito Enriquez, merchant in Hamburg, 1632.

2.4.36. Noel Huglo, 1632
2.4.36.1 Policy dated 28 March 1632 to Noel Huglo on four sacks of merchandise from Nicolas and

Davidt Godins in Lille in the ship "La Calauna" skipper Jean Douviere, sailing from Le
Havre to Guillielmo Claerboult and Vechounez in Cadiz, 1632.

2.4.37. Paulo Dujon, 1623-1636
2.4.37.1 Current account on the sale of diamonds for account of Paulo Duhon in Antwerp. London,

1623.12.31.
2.4.37.2 Insurance policy dated 28 May 1636 to Paulo Dujon in Antwerp, on cargo from Dover to

Dunkirk. Antwerp, 1636.05.28.

2.4.38. Jeremias Bagens, 1638
2.4.38.1 Policy dated 9 October 1638 to Jeremias Bagens in Antwerp, on a sack of Flemish

merchandise in the ship "l'Honneur", skipper Andree Batten, sailing from Dunkirk or
Dover to Genoa, 1638.

2.4.39. Louys and Robert Le Candele, Antwerp 1638-1730 [See the same, Special Collections 148]
2.4.39.1 Abandonment by Louys and Robert Le Candele of their cargo of wine on the ship of

skipper Laurens Jensen sailing from Nantes to Flanders that was seized by the English,
1638.

2.4.39.2 Abandonment by Louys and Robert Le Candele of their cargo of wine on the ship of
skipper Laurens Jensen sailing from Nantes to Flanders that was seized by the English,
1654.



2.4.39.3 Current account taken from the ledger of Catharina Vincque, widow of Louis Le Candele,
who died 14 January 1718 and division among her heirs, 1730.

2.4.40. Pedro Henricques, 1632-1640 [see also Van der Beke]
2.4.40.1 Invoice by Michiel Burnley for cargo shipped from Dunkirk to Dover on consignment of

Michel Perry for order of Pedro Henriquez in San Lucar, 1632.
2.4.40.2 Policy dated 25 June 1640 to Pedro Henricques in Antwerp on merchandise in the ship "La

Reformation", skipper Willem Sergeant, sailing from Dover or Dunkirk to Cadiz, 1640.

2.4.41. Pedro Janssens de Bisthoven, 1640-1674
2.4.41.1 Copy of the policy on twelve cases of indigo for Cornelio Maignaert in Amsterdam and

Lenart van Ralighem in Calais from Dover to Amsterdam dated 16 October 1631 with a
testimony by Gillis Dodeur that Gerrit de Beer did not sign, 1640.

2.4.41.2 Copy of the current account for Pedro Jansen de Bisthoven from the account book of
Cornelis Maignart, 1631-1632 concerning indigo, 1640.

2.4.41.3 Policy on the ship "De Boeder" of captain Jan Pietersen Boeder owned by Ottavio Tensini,
sailing from Amsterdam to Civita Vecchia in Italy, 1648.

2.4.41.4 Abandonment on request of Joan Andrea and Ottavio Tensini of the ship "De Boeder",
skipper Jan Pietersen Boeder from Hoorn, which has been seized by the French in Porti
Longone, 1649.

2.4.41.5 Letter wondering that the ship "Den Boeder" which has been seized by the French should
have sailed without bill of lading, 1649. [see also 1.2.03.06]

2.4.41.6 Abandonment on request of Ottavio Tensini to Pedro Janssen de Bisthoven c.s of the ship
"Den Boeder", sailing from Amsterdam to Civita Vecchia and seized by the French, 1649.

2.4.41.7 Extract from the accountbook of the late Joan de Letter concerning trade in diamonds,
1648-1651, signed by Adrian Borrekens and Pedro J. de Bisthoven, 1662.

2.4.41.8 Extract from the ledger of the late Joan de Letter concerning the trade in diamonds 1648-
1650, signed by Pedro de Bisthoven and Adriaen Borrekens, 1662.

2.4.41.9 Account in the trial of Ferdinando Janssens against Pieter Janssens. Belgium, 1674.

2.4.42. Hendrik Verbelt, 1642
2.4.42.1 Dutch translation from the Spanish by notary Fernando Perra dated San Lucar 23

November 1642. Hendrik Berbelt from Sevilla claims four cargos of linen coming from
Calais that were seized by order of the Duke of Medina Sidonia, 1642.

2.4.42.2 Dutch translation from the Spanish dated San Lucar 25 November 1642. Hendrik Verbelt
from Sevilla claims cargo in the ship "Het Tye", skipper Jean Le Sueur, seized by order of
the Duke of Medina Sidonia in 1623, 1642.

2.4.43. Gutieres Robyns, 1642-1646
2.4.43.1 Copy of a policy to Gutieres Robijns in Antwerp on cargo in an English, Irish or

Hamburgian ship sailing from Dublin to Dunkirk or Ostend, dated 13 November 1640,
1646.

2.4.43.2 Copy of a policy to Gutieres Robijns in Antwerp on cargo in the ship "Rebecca" from
London, skipper Richard Burley, sailing from Dublin to Dunkirk or Ostend, dated 29
October 1641, 1646.

2.4.43.3 Manifest by Richard Burley, skipper of the "Rebecca" from London, and invoice by
Elisabeth and Peeter Wybrants for a cargo of butter and tallow from Dublin to Ostend for
account of Gutieres Robyns, 1642.

2.4.43.4 Settlement by Melis Panhuysen "commis int feit van aseurantie" on the policies on the
cargo of the ship "Rebecca" to Gutieres Robijns, 1642.

2.4.43.5 Dutch translation of a bill of lading by Richard Burley, skipper of the "Rebecca" and a toll
receipt dated 4 October 1641 for a cargo of butter from Peter Wibrants in Dublin to
Gutieres Robijns in Ostend, 1646.



2.4.43.6 Copy of a summons by notary Leonard van Halle to the insurers of the cargo on the
"Rebecca" dated 7 February 1642 that some casks of tallow washed ashore near Calais,
1646.

2.4.43.7 Copy of a summons to the insurers of the "Rebecca" by notary Leonard van Halle dated 4
August 1642 that the ship is presumed wrecked, 1646.

2.4.43.8 Copy of a testimony before notary Leonard van Halle by broker Herman Gardini dated 22
October 1642 that the cargo of the ship "Rebecca" was not specified in the policy, 1646.

2.4.43.9 Copy of a policy to Gutieres Robijns in Antwerp on cargo in the ship "Endevoir" or
"Choram", skipper Willem Clarcke, sailing from Dublin to Ostend, dated 2 December
1641, 1646.

2.4.43.10 Copy of the invoice for freight of the cargo of the ship "Endevoir" or "Choram" of skipper
William Clarcke to Ostend for account of Gutieres Robijns, dated Dublin 2 January 1644,
1646.

2.4.43.11 Manifest for the ship "Endevoir" or "Schoram", skipper William Clarcke, sailing with a
cargo of tallow to Ostend for account of Gutieres Robijns, 1644?

2.4.43.12 Copy of a summons by notary Leonard van Halle dated 7 November 1642 to the insurers
of the cargo in the ship of captain William Clarcke, 1646.

2.4.43.13 Copy of the account by Jan La Mot on the salvaging of cargo from the wreckage of the
ship of William Clarck near Salcombe on June 17th 1642, 1646.

2.4.44. Hugh and William Forth vs Jan van Barle c.s., 1642-1646
2.4.44.1 Summons against the seizure of silk stockings from Naples, sent by Daniel Porten in Dover

to Jan Polento in Antwerp, for debts of Jan van Barle to Hugh Florsz., 1642
2.4.44.2 Dutch translation of 2.4.44.1.
2.4.44.3 English translation of the testimony by Charles Spina, merchant in silks from Naples, in

the case of Hugh and William Forth versus Jan van Baerle and Vincent van Ghenegem
from Naples, 1643.

2.4.44.4 Dutch translation of 2.4.44.3.
2.4.44.5 Credentials for notary Joseph Anello, translated from the Italian into English and from the

English into Dutch, 1643.
2.4.44.6 Verdict by the Admirality in the case between Hugh and William Forth and Jan van Barle,

Arnold van Horenbeke and Vincent van Geneghem about a sack of silk on the "Sun",
captain Jacob Hall, 1645.

2.4.44.7 Dutch translation of 2.4.44.6.
2.4.44.8 Verdict by the Admirality in Hugo and William North c.s. vs Arnoldus van Horenbergue

and Vincentius van Geneghen. The lot of cocoons of the silkworm belongs to Johan van
Barle. H. and G. pay a fine and costs, 1646.

2.4.45. Michel van de Gevel, 1644-1645
2.4.45.1 Policy dated 31 May 1644 to Michiel van de Gevel merchant in Amsterdam, on the ship

"St. Jan Battist", skipper Jan Wellinck, sailing from Texel to Sevilla, 1644.
2.4.45.2 Policy dated 9 November 1645 to Michel van de Gevel merchant in Amsterdam, on the

ship "St. George", skipper Jan Martens, sailing from Amsterdam to San Lucar, 1645.

2.4.46. Widow Jacques Wouters and Peeter Wouters, 1645-1680
2.4.46.1 Policy dated 6 April 1645 to Andrea van Cantelbeque in Antwerp on merchandise from

Ghent through Dunkirk with convoy to Dover and by ship to Sevilla, 1645.
2.4.46.2 Current account of the affairs of the widow of Jacques and Peeter Wouters for George

Bequemans, 1680?
2.4.46.3 Extracts from the journal of merchant Andries van Cant concerning debts for tapestry to

the widow Jacques and Pedro Wouters sent by way of Amsterdam to Cadiz on
consignment of Jan Carlo Leersen y Co, 1677-1679.



2.4.47. Jacques van Eycke, 1652-1653 [Jacques marries 1608]
2.4.47.1 Dutch translation from the Spanish of a protested bill of exchange to be payed to Pedro

Colaert in Cadiz, 1652.
2.4.47.2 Current account from the ledger letter H by Jacques van Eijcke, 1653.

2.4.48. Jorge Bosschart, 1651-1666
2.4.48.1 Invoice for Indian linen shipped from Goa by Carlos Ostart in the galleon "Sta Joao" for

account of Arnolt van Hazedonck and Jan Battista Juncker, 1651.
2.4.48.2 Letter by Schoyer mentioning the bottomry on the ship of Peter Finnen, 1652.
2.4.48.3 Policy to Jorge Bosschart on bottomry from Franz Schloyer on the ship of Peter Finne

sailing from Hamburg to Cadiz, 1652.
2.4.48.4 Dutch translation of an English testimony dated Southwark 4 August 1653 about the ship

"De Engel Raphaël", skipper Peter Fynne, taken by "De Pauw", captain Taylor Budd,
1653?

2.4.48.5 Abandonment to the insurers of the bottomry by Jorge Bosschaert to Jacques Douglas on
the ship of Peter Finne sailing from Hamburg to Cadiz, 1653.

2.4.48.6 Testimony by merchant Jacques Bollaert that he could not decide with Mr. Bloys the
difference between Jorge Bosschaert and Jacques Douglas, 1656.

2.4.48.7 Testimony by Jan Baptista Juncker that Pieter Finne received 357 pounds for the ship that
was seized by the English. Therefore he had sued Henning Borneman as surety for Finne,
1657.

2.4.48.8 Testimonies by Henning Borneman and Frans Schloyer that they were not refunded by
Peter Finnen for their security to Jan Baptiste Juncker resp. their bottomry, 1658.

2.4.48.9 Testimony by broker Michiel Breydel on request of Jorge Bosschaert about the
abandonment by Bosschaert of the 400 pieces of eight on July 14th 1653, 1659.

2.4.48.10 Franciscus Schloyer insured in 1652 the 400 Imperials that Johann Baptista Juncker had
given to skipper Peter Finnen as bottomry; Schloyer himself gave Finnen 400 pieces of
eight in bottomry that were insured in Antwerp, 1662.

2.4.48.11 Testimony by broker Michiel Brendel on request of George Boschaert about the ship "De
Engel Raphaël" taken by the English on which he had insured 400 pieces of eight, 1662.

2.4.48.12 Testimony by Samuel Aloys on request of George Bosschaert that in 1656 he tried to
arbitrate with Jacques Bollaert between George Bollaert and Jacques Douglas dict Schot
about the ship of Peter Finnen, 1662.

2.4.48.13 Declaration that no information on the seized ship "De Engel Raphaël" from Bergen was
found in the register of His Majesties High Court of Admiralty, 1662.

2.4.48.14 Dutch translation of 2.4.48.13.
2.4.48.15 Insurance policy to Jorge Bosschart, merchant from Antwerp, on cargo transported by

skipper Cristian van Wetteringh, sailing from Hamburgh to Cadiz, 1652.
2.4.48.16 Policy to Jorge Bosschart merchant from Antwerp for cargo on the ship "De Haes int Velt"

sailing from Le Havre to Cadiz, 1655.
2.4.48.17 Copy of a policy on the ship "De Haes int Velt" of captain Jan Lien owned by George

Bosschart merchant of Antwerp dated Antwerp 3 April 1656.
2.4.48.18 Copy of a policy to George Bosschaert on cargo in the ship "de Haes int Velt", skipper Jan

Kien, sailing from London to Cadiz, 1656.
2.4.48.19 Copy of a testimony dated Cadiz 10 March 1656 on capture and sale of the ship "De Haes

int Velt" captain Joan Green, arriving in Cadix on 17 June 1656, 1657.
2.4.48.20 Dutch translation from the Spanish by the governor of Cadiz that the ship "De Haes int

Velt", skipper Jan Kien, was rightly seized on 18 June 1656; Abandonment of the cargo by
Jorge Bosschaert, 1658.

2.4.48.21 Copy of a policy dated 16 April 1655 to George Bosschaert on cargo in the ship "De Haes
int Velt" skipper Jean Kien sailing from Le Havre to Cadiz, 1663.



2.4.48.22 Copy of the abandonment to the insurers of cargo in the ship "De Haes int Velt" by George
Bosschaert before Jacques Le Rousseau dated 30 September 1655 because it was seized in
London, 1666.

2.4.48.23 Copy of the abandonment by George Bosschaert of cargo in the ship "Onse Lieve
Vrouwe", skipper Jan van Lieven, sailing from San Domingo to Amsterdam, that was
taken by an English frigate to Toulon, dated 18 December 1658.

2.4.48.24 Manifest for the ship "St Maria", captain Juan van Linen, that was taken by the English,
1661.

2.4.48.25 Testimony by Juan Moller that the ship "Nuestra Senora", captain Jean van Linnen,
departed from Santo Domingo in July 1658 to the Island Santa Cruz and continued to
Cadiz, but was seized by the English and brought to London, 1661.

2.4.49. Sebastian Cortises and Sebastian Lopez Hierede de Castro, 1653
2.4.49.1 Andreas Mertens promises to pay his part when the ship is taken by the English; policy for

Sebastian Cortises and Sebastian Lopez Hierede de Castro on the ship "St. Jan" captain
Jan de Vos sailing from Malaga to Ostend dated April 1653.

2.4.50. Ship “St Vincent”, 1653
2.4.50.1 Testimony by Philippe Beguin c.s., merchants of Rouen concerning the ship "St. Vincent",

captain David Dormant from Hamburg, sailing from Le Havre, 1653.

2.4.51. Cornelis Cock, 1654-1665
2.4.51.1 Policy dated 30 December 1654 to Cornelis Cock in Antwerp on cargo in the ship "Prins

Willem", captain Claes Dobbeljock, sailing from Middelburg to Bilbao, 1654.
2.4.51.2 Copy of the testimony by insurers dated 1 February 1655 on the abandonment of the ship

"Prins Willem" of captain Claes Dobbelroch which was wrecked sailing from Middelburg
to Bilbao, 1655.

2.4.51.3 Testimony by Adriaen Goltsmit insurer to Cornelis Cock on cargo in the ship "Prins
Willem", sailing from Middelburg to Biscay, which stranded in England. Most
merchandise was sold in Zealand, 1656.

2.4.51.4 Testimony by Cornelis Cocq on the insurance and abandonment of the ship "Prins Willem"
of captain Claes Dobbelroch which was wrecked in Downs on the way from Middelburg to
Bilbao, 1656.

2.4.51.5 Policy to Cornelio Kock merchant from Antwerp on 40 casks of wine in the ship "De
Wildeman" skipper Hans Wiltschuijt, sailing from Bordeaux to Ostend, 1665.

2.4.52. Jan Thilly, 1655
2.4.52.1 Policy dated 30 July 1655 to Jan Thilly on cargo in the ship of skipper Jacques Bollaert,

sailing from Dunkirk to Cadiz and San Lucar, 1655.

2.4.53. Jacomo Rulant, 1660-1662
2.4.53.1 Letter by Benito d'Almeda to Henrico Mathias and Jacomo Ruland in Antwerp on slave

trade from Cabo Verde through Don Manuel d'Acosta y Souza, 1660.
2.4.53.2 Copy (without signatures) of an insurance policy dated 7 April 1661 to Jacomo Rulant on

cargo in the ship "St. Jan Baptista", skipper Juan de Salesar, captain Benito d'Almeida,
sailing from the Westindies (Cartagena) to Spain (Cadiz), 1662.

2.4.54. Joris van de Walle, 1661
2.4.54.1 Bill of lading by Johannes Ay. Bauthers, skipper on the "Zeelandia" to Joris van de Walle

for five sacks containing 1000 Mexican pieces of eight, to be delivered to Pieter Mercarl in
Middelburg, signed "In de Corane". 1661.10.27.



2.4.55. Gerard Versteghen, 1661-1669
2.4.55.1 Bill of lading by captain Heijndrick Lucifer from Vlissingen for the "Prins Willem" sailing

from Vlissingen to the Caribees, 1661.
2.4.55.2 Policy to Gerard Versteghen on cargo in the ship "Prins Willem", skipper Hendrick

Lucifer, sailing from Vlissingen to the Caribees, 1662.
2.4.55.3 Manifests by Quirijn Pietersen Verdiest on the ship "Den Jongen Prins", skipper

Henderick Lucifer, sailing from Vlissingen to the Caribees, dated 17 March 1661 and 16
June 1663.

2.4.55.4 Annex to 2.4.55.3, 1670.
2.4.55.5 Annex to 2.4.55.3, 1670.
2.4.55.6 Annex to 2.4.55.3, 1670.
2.4.55.7 Policy to Gerard Versteghen on cargo and the ship of skipper Quirin Pietersen Verdiest

sailing from Martinique and San Domingo to Vlissingen, 1661.
2.4.55.8 Letter to Gerard Versteghen in Vlissingen by his agent on Martinique, 1662.
2.4.55.9 Testimony by Crijn Pietersen Verdiest on request of Catherina Bosschaert, widow of

Geeraert Verstegen that he bought from the proceeds of his cargo to the Caribees the ship
"Bon Aventure" that was seized by the Spanish, 1669.

2.4.56. Carlos Hassinck, 1661-1701
2.4.56.1 Policy on the ship of captain Jurgen Jenckel owned by Charles Hassinck merchant in

Antwerp, sailing from Bordeaux to Hamburg, 1661.
2.4.56.2 Policy dated 25 August 1666 to Carlos Hassinck on the ship "St. Andries", skipper Carsten

Stobbe, sailing from Hamburgh to Ostend, 1666.
2.4.56.3 Policy dated 12 November 1666 to Charlos Hassinck in Antwerp on figs in the ship "De

Fortuyn", skipper, Jacob Brugman, sailing from Villanova in the Condaet to Hamburgh,
1666.

2.4.56.4 Policy dated 20 December 1666 to Charlos Hassinck in Antwerp on linen from Harford in
the ship of skipper Riemer Mickels, sailing from Hamburg to London, 1668.

2.4.56.5 Extracts from the journal of the late Charles Hassinck concerning payment of averages on
ships to Giorgio Luders, Daniel Kraft and Bertel Jenckel, 1665-1676, 1701.

2.4.57. Guillermo Herincx, 1661-1716 [See the same, Special Collections 199]
2.4.57.1 Invoice for cargo in the ship "St. Pieter", skipper Pieter Vieth from Tonningen for account

of .. and Guillaume Herinx in Antwerp on consignment to Philip Ignatio Hugues in
Ostend, 1661.

2.4.57.2 Verdict by Sheriff and Aldermen of Antwerp between Francisco van Piet and Francisco
Kuyff that claimant incurs no risk on several ships because defendant did not prove that he
paid the primes, 1663.

2.4.57.3 Proceeds of a silver ingot sold in St. Malo for the account of Guillaume Heerinx, 1665.
2.4.57.4 Invoice for buying two cargos of silver sent from Cadiz to Butor in Paris for account of

Guilliam Heerincx, 1665.
2.4.57.5 Invoice for freight on two cargos of silver from Cadiz to Butor in Paris for account of

Guilliam Heerincx, 1665.
2.4.57.6 Policy, partly in Spanish, partly in Dutch, for cargo on the ship "Solero", captain William

Barter, sailing from Dublin to Barbados. The policy is signed February-May 1665.
2.4.57.7 Policy, partly in Spanish, partly in Dutch, on cargo in the ship "Solero", captain William

Barter, sailing from Dublin to Barbados. The policy is signed February-May 1665.
2.4.57.8 Invoice by Paul de Hooghe to Guillielmo Herinx for cables and linen shipped to the

Canaries in the "St. Pieter" skipper Mevis Andriessen van Alcmar, 1668.
2.4.57.9 Verdict and interrogation before the court of Basse Terre, Guadeloupe dated 13 July 1667.

The ship "Succes" from Dublin, taken by the Flemish ship "Het gecroont Cruijs van
Amsterdam", captain Jan Bergis is declared a good prize, 1668.

2.4.57.10 Current account and invoice for Francisco Kuijf for insurances on ships, 1666-1669.



2.4.57.11 Transcription of a notarial act by Fernando Parra, dated San Lucar 6 April 1667,
concerning the arrest of merchant ships.

2.4.57.12 Policy for Guillermo Herincx in Antwerp on cargo in the ship "Jesus Maria Anna", captain
Joan Kiekens sailing from Ostend to Cadiz, 1667.

2.4.57.13 Copy of the policy dated 6 April 1667 to Guillermo Herincx on cargo in the ship "Jezus
Maria Anna", captain Jan Kiekens, sailing from Ostend to Cadiz, 1668 

2.4.57.14 Extract from the "negotieboek" of broker Laurenzo Jacobs from Antwerp over 1666 for the
heirs of Francisco van de Piet in their case against Guillielmo Herincx, 1671.

2.4.57.15 Extract from the journal of Lorenzo Jacobs, broker in Antwerp, dated 23 December 1666
concerning the policy to Guillermo Herincx on the ship "La Trinidad" sailing from London
to the Canaries, 1671.

2.4.57.16 Extracts from the books of the late Francisco van der Piet concerning debts of Nicolaes
vander Borcht, 1666-1668, 1673.

2.4.57.17 Testimony by Mattheo van der Hoeven on request of Guillermo Henricx on the ship "La
Trinidad", skipper Robert Willemsen Padrix. It sailed from London to the Canaries, not to
Bilbao. Lorenzo Jacobs arranged the insurance, 1674.

2.4.57.18 Current account between Guillaume de la Mulle and the heirs Herinx, 1716.

2.4.58. Miquel de Los Rios and Mendo Canarez, 1664-1666
2.4.58.1 Translation of an English bill of lading of the "Backelaer", captain Allen Doloner, sailing

from Dublin to Barbados with a cargo of wine from Julian and Niclaes Cors in St. Malo to
Isaac and Aron Navarro, 1664.

2.4.58.2 Abandonment dated 12 June 1665 by Don Miguel de Los Rios of a cargo of Canary wine
in the ship "Bachelaer", captain Allen Douwner, sailing from Dublin to Barbados, that was
first taken by a privateer from Zealand and then seized in Newcastle, 1665.

2.4.58.3 Dutch translation of a Spanish testimony by Francisco Gomez that he received from Pedro
Alvares primes due from Miquel de Los Rios and Mendo Canarez on the policy for the
"Bachelor", captain Allen Doloner, sailing from from Dublin to Barbados, 1666.

2.4.59. Robert Gale, 1665
2.4.59.1 Dutch translation of an English policy on the cargo for account of Robert Gale in a ship

from Danzig, sailing from Nantes to Dunkirk, Nieuwpoort or Ostend, dated London 17
January 1653, 1665.

2.4.60. Ship "Nuestra Senora del Buen Successo", 1665
2.4.60.1 Bill of lading for the ship "Nuestra Senora del Buen Successo", skipper Francisco de Driu

e Larreo, from Cadiz to Nueva Espana. Cadiz, 1665.06.30.

2.4.61. Jan Ceulen, 1665
2.4.61.1 Way-bill for 10 sacks of spices, shipped by Lucas Scholten on the "St. Catharina", skipper

Jurrien Goverts, to Jan Ceulen in Cadiz, 1665.
2.4.61.2 Declaration of provenance for 10 sacks of spices, shipped by Lucas Scholten on the "St.

Catharina", skipper Jurrien Goverts, to Jan Ceulen in Cadiz, 1665.

2.4.62. Salomon Cock, 1666
2.4.62.1 Insurance policy dated 9 September 1666 to Salomon Cock merchant from Antwerp on the

ship "St. Anna", skipper Anthonie Suype, sailing from Rossel to Dublin or Worford in
Ireland, 1666.



2.4.63. Jan Baptista van Eycke, 1666-1686. See als “Nuestra Señora”, Special Collections 219.
2.4.63.1 Policy dated 11 December 1666 to Joan Baptista van Eycke from Antwerp on the ship

"Nuestra Senora de la Concepcion y San Joseph", skipper Anthony de Witt, sailing from
Zealand to the Canaries, 1666.

2.4.63.2 Testimony by the crew of the ship "Nuestra Senora de la Conception", captain François
Gijselincx, concerning damage on the roads of Danzig and delay through the arrest in
Marstrand, 1667.

2.4.63.3 Copy of 2.4.63.2, 1681.
2.4.63.4 Bill of lading for the ship "Nuestra Senora del Conception" skipper François Gijselincx

sailing from Danzig to Ostend dated 14 November 1666 on back of bill of lading for the
same ship by skipper Antonio de Witte dated 4 January 1667, 1681.

2.4.63.5 Manifest by François Gijselingh, skipper of the "Nuestra Senora de la Conception" sailing
from Danzig and arrested for four months in Marstrand because the Spanish had seized
four Swedish ships, 1681.

2.4.63.6 Contract of arbitrage and verdict between insurers and owner Jan Baptista van Eycke
about the average of the ship "Nuestra Senora dela Conception", captain François
Gijselincx, sailing with cargo from Danzig to London, 1681.

2.4.63.7 Testimony before Lord Mayor and Aldermen by Jan Baptista vander Hoeve that the
Antwerp merchant Jan Baptista van Eyck did not pay him for wine which he sold to mr.
Colins, with a Dutch translation by notary Antony Wright, 1686.

2.4.64. Martinus Claessen van der Zypen, 1667
2.4.64.1 Policy dated 10 November 1667 to Martinus Claessen van der Zypen, merchant in Ostend

on the ship "Averrus", skipper Anthony Herbou, sailing from Ostend to the Canaries,
1667.

2.4.65. Olivier and Lesentueil, Paris, 1667
2.4.65.1 Henri Gillte testifies before mayor and aldermen of Bordeaux that he is only the captain of

the ship "La ville de Paris". The owners are Olivier and Lesentueil, burghers of Paris.
Bordeaux, 1667.07.27.

2.4.66. Ship “De Vrede”, 1667
2.4.66.1 Proceeds of the auction of goods and instruments saved from the ship "De Vrede".

Rotterdam, 1667 [year in pencil].

2.4.67. Peter Paulus Borrekens, 1668-1679
2.4.67.1 Bill of lading by Joachim Praust, skipper of "De Fortuyn" for a cargo he received in Porto

from Balthasar Rubin for account of Hendrick Martens, Migel Heusch, Hendrick
Dobbeler, Geraldo Heusch and Jan Stoer, dated Porto 15 September 1668.

2.4.67.2 Verdict stating that insurers must pay because the ship of captain Joachim Praust has been
seized by Turkish pirates and taken to Algiers, 1668.

2.4.67.3 Account for the insurance by Gerald Heusch and Joan Stoer of their cargo in the ship "De
Fortuyn" of captain J. Praust through Pieter Paul Borrekens in Antwerp, 1668.

2.4.67.4 Letter to Geraldo Heusch and Joan Stoer about mutual trade, 1668.
2.4.67.5 Manifest (cargasoen) of the ship "De Fortuyn" of captain Joachim Praust, 1668.
2.4.67.6 Copy of an insurance policy to Berardt Heusch and Joan Stoer on cargo in the ship of

skipper Joachim Praust, sailing from Port à Port to Hamburgh, entered in the journal 15
September 1668.

2.4.67.7 Bill of lading for "De Fortuyn" of captain Joachim Praust sailing from Porto to Hamburg,
1668.

2.4.67.8 Manifest (cargasoen) for 2 cases of fine white sugar from Pernambuco, shipped in "De
Fortuyn" of captain J. Praust to Geraldo Heusch and Jan Stoer in Hamburg, 1668.



2.4.67.9 Inventory of the movables left by Peter Paulus Borrekens, merchant, who died 12 October
1679.

2.4.68. Hendrick Valckesteyn, 1671
2.4.68.1 Testimony by Hendrick Valckesteyn, shipwright, owner of the ship "Valckenburch", that

he received a letter from captain Jan Cortois that the ship was wrecked near Boulogne;
affirmation by the Amsterdam Magistrate, 1671.

2.4.68.2 Letter dated Boulogne 19 January 1671 by skipper Jan Cortois to Hendrick Valkensteijn in
Amsterdam declaring that he lost his ship in a storm on January 14th, 1671.

2.4.68.3 Testimony by Abigael Henriques and Jacob de Faro that Daniel Verminnen in Antwerp
insured their cargo on the "Valckenburch" sailing to Dublin; Affirmation by the
Amsterdam magistrate, 1671.

2.4.68.4 Testimony by Jan Cortois that his ship "Valckenburch", sailing from Texel to Dublin, has
been wrecked by a storm near Boulogne; translation of a confirmation by the lieutenant-
general in Boulogne; confirmation by the Amsterdam magistrate, 1671.

2.4.69. William Cramner, 1672
2.4.69.1 Policy dated 4 November 1672 to William Cramner in Antwerp on whalebone in the ship

"St.Peter", skipper Thomas Claessen, sailing from Hamburg to London, 1672.

2.4.70. Jacques de Lannoy, 1680-1699
2.4.70.1 Policy dated 23 October 1680 to Jacques de Lannoy on a sack of lace freighted by Jacques

Hoys in the ship "St.Mary" sailing from Ostend to Ringenberghen & Scouten in Cadiz,
1680.

2.4.70.2 Way-bill for a sack of processed silk, bought in the Easter Fair by Jacques de Lannoy from
Couvreur & Cie and exported through Picardie, 1683.

2.4.70.3 Way-bill by the burgraviate of Lille for a little cask of Auxerre wine going by common
carrier of Antwerp to Mr. De Lannoye, 1684.

2.4.70.4 Way-bill from the "Watertol" to Jacques de Lannoy for a packet of lace coming per carrier
from Ghent and going per mail to Holland, 1689.

2.4.70.5 Policy to Jaques de Lannoy on tobacco in the English ship "The Hope", captain Richardo
Pirille, sailing from Lisbon to Rouen, 1694.

2.4.70.6 Way-bill by David and Jacobus de Neufville in Frankfurt to Jacques de Lannoy in
Antwerp through carrier Theis Jeger, 1697.

2.4.70.7 Policy to Jacques de Lannoy on merchandise in the ship "La Santissima Trinidad", captain
Giovanni Battista Covin, sailing from Ostend to Cadiz, 1699.

2.4.71. Justo and Guilliermo Forchoudt, Antwerp 1680-1708 [See the same, Special Collections
201]
2.4.71.1 Movables of Benedictus Lenaerts, auctioned 5 September 1680 on request of his wife

Anna Kerckhoven, as extracted from the "Vercoopboeck" of the Amtman, fol.179 sqq.,
1680.

2.4.71.2 Summons before the city-hall on request of Gerard Raart to Guillermo Forschout in
Antwerp to compare before Aldermen of Amsterdam on 17 March to follow an order of
cession, 1682.

2.4.71.3 Letter by Adriaan van Alderwerelt to Marco Forchoudt in Vienna concerning trade in
jewels and shipment of chocolate, 1688.

2.4.71.4 Account for the owners of the ship "Jesus Maria" (part owner Jan Leers), 1690.
2.4.71.5 Policy dated 16 November 1691 to the widow of Adriaen van Alderwereldt & Son on

skipper Gillis Joosten van den Brande sailing from the Meuse to Cadiz, 1691.
2.4.71.6 Ticket by commissary Cornelis van Bueren for a cargo of hides from Joan van Vollenhove

through skipper Cornelis Devos jr to Guillermo Forchout in Antwerp, 1693.



2.4.71.7 Current account of the ship "San Francisco", captain Hendricq Weuer. Partners Hendrik
Wever, Justo Forchoudt, Francisco Buijsen, 1694.

2.4.71.8 Policy dated 17 July 1694 to Cornelio Wolter Mahuis on the ship "St.Franciscus", skipper
Hendrick Wever, sailing from Cadiz to Hamburg, 1694.

2.4.71.9 Policy dated 13 November 1694 to Cornelis Blesen & Co. on the ship "St. Franciscus",
skipper Hendrick Wever, sailing from Altona to Cadiz, 1694.

2.4.71.10 Invoice by Godefrooy Lenaerts to Guillielmo Forchout for brokerage fees on insurances to
his father Benedictus Leenaerts, 1695.

2.4.71.11 Debenture by Hendricq Weuer, skipper of the "San Francisco", to Justo Forchoudt, with a
request to insure the ship from Cadiz to Sauona, 1695.

2.4.71.12 Invoice by Herman Olmius to Guillelmo Forchoudt in Antwerp on the sale of diamonds for
his account, 1696.

2.4.71.13 Debenture by captain Hendricq Weuer to Cornelis Blessen & Cy for the proceedings of the
auction of the ship "San Francisco" that he bought back in Zealand. Broer Broersen will
sail it to Hamburg and then to Cadiz, 1697.

2.4.71.14 Invoice for a policy for account of Justo y Guillermo Forchoudt on the ship "Jesus Maria",
captain Jilles Joosten van den Branden, sailing from the Meuse to Cadiz, 1698.

2.4.71.15 Invoice by Joan van den Broeck on the sale of rough diamonds for account of Guillelmo
Forcautt sent to Rotterdam on consignment of Martinus van Egmondt, 1698.

2.4.71.16 Current account on the sale of diamonds for account of Guillelmo and Susanna Forchoudt
in Antwerp, 1699.

2.4.71.17 Invoice by Joan van den Broeck on the sale of rough diamonds for account of Guillelmo
Forcautt, 1699.

2.4.71.18 Invoice by Joan van den Broeck on the sale of rough diamonds for account of Guillelmo
Forcautt sent to Rotterdam on consignment of Martinus van Egmondt, 1700.

2.4.71.19 Letter by George Hannibal Braun to Guillaume Forchoud in Antwerp concerning the
prices of [plated?] silver, 1700.

2.4.71.20 Invoice by Joan van den Broeck on the sale of rough diamonds for account of Guillelmo
Forcautt sent to Rotterdam on consignment of Martinus van Egmondt, 1700.

2.4.71.21 Invoice by Joan van den Broeck on the sale of rough diamonds for account of Guillelmo
Forcautt sent to Rotterdam on consignment of Martinus van Egmondt, 1700.

2.4.71.22 Letter to Guillielmo Forchoudt in Antwerp concerning trade in diamonds, 1700.
2.4.71.23 Invoice by Joan van den Broeck on the sale of rough diamonds for account of Guillelmo

Forcautt sent to Rotterdam on consignment of Martinus van Egmondt, 1701.
2.4.71.24 Copy of an insurance policy dated 24 July 1694 to Cornelio Wolter Mahuis on the ship

"St. Franciscus" skipper Hendrick Wever, sailing from Cadiz to Hamburg with convoy
from England to Ostend, 1701.

2.4.71.25 Dutch translation of Spanish extracts dated Cadiz 13 July 1701 from the books of the late
Francisco Buysen 1689-1694 concerning Hendrik Wever, 1701.

2.4.71.26 Martin Guillermo van Hemert vs Jacobo de Man, Justo Forchout, De Noye and De Whit
concerning a bill of exchange by Martin Guillermo Van Hemert on Van den Kerkhove,
1702.

2.4.71.27 Martin Guillermo van Hemert vs Adrian Guillermo De Noye concerning a bill of exchange
by Van Hemert on Francisco van den Kerkhoven, 1702.

2.4.71.28 Rodrigo Vambercquel vs Fourchaud, de Noye, De Whit y Comp concerning a letter of
exchange by Nicolas van Duffel in Antwerp on Balthazar Cattaneo, 1704.

2.4.71.29 Rodrigo Vambercquel vs Fourchaud, de Noye, De Whit y Comp concerning a letter of
exchange by Nicolas van Duffel in Antwerp on Balthazar Cattaneo, 1704.

2.4.71.30 Authorization for Justo and Guillermo Forchoudt on behalf of Guillielmo de Drusina to
proceed against Juan Baptista de Cocquiel in Antwerp, 1705.

2.4.71.31 Verdict in the appeal of Jehan Baptiste Man.dela.r, marchand bourgeois de Paris? vs
Baptiste Cocquiel, 1707.

2.4.71.32 Current account by Yves Verdue to Justo and Guillermo Forchaut on the sale of of silver
and gold in Paris and of piastres in Nantes, 1707.



2.4.71.33 Letter by Yves Verdué to Justo & Guillermo Forcaud in Antwerp following 2.4.71.32,
1707.

2.4.71.34 Invoice for a case of vanilla, annex to 2.4.71.33, 1707.
2.4.71.35 Account by Marcus Forchoudt concerning the sale of diamonds for account of Justo

Forchoudt, 1708.

2.4.72. Pedro Smissaert, 1681-1697
2.4.72.1 Policy dated 9 December 1681 to Joan Jacobs & Cy. in Antwerp on the ship "Nuestra

Senora de la Misericordia", skipper Don Juan Pedrossa, sailing from Curaçao to the
Westindies and then to Cadiz or another place in Spain, 1681.

2.4.72.2 Copy of the transfer of the "Santa Maria" by Don Balthasar Coymans and Don Pedro van
Belle on behalf of Joan de Hertoghe c.s. in Hamburg to Don Juan Barroso del Pozo, Cadiz
28.10.1679. Payment on return from America only, unless seized by the King, 1682.

2.4.72.3 Dutch translation of 2.4.72.2.
2.4.72.4 Process between George Uythoff, merchant in Hamburg, and Pedro Smissaert, 1688.
2.4.72.5 Process between Pedro Smissaert c.s. and Joris Uythof, 1688?
2.4.72.6 Process between Pedro Smissaert c.s. and Joris Uijthoff, 1689?
2.4.72.7 Copy of the contract between "Prior y Consules dela Universidad de los cargadores a

Indias" and Juan Barroso dela Pozo that Pozo will carry 6.000 tonelados of slaves to
America, dated Sevilla 14 January 1683, 1689.

2.4.72.8 Dutch translation of 2.4.72.7.
2.4.72.9 Testimony by Joachim Stoelmaeker, solicitor, on the case between Jürgen Uthoff and the

insurers of the ship "Nuestra Senora de la Misericordia" for average between Cadiz and
Curaçao, 1689.

2.4.72.10 Testimony by Barent Franck, skipper from Hamburg, concerning the proceeds of the ship
"Nuestra Senora de la Misericordia", sailing from Cadiz to Curaçao after the capture in
Cartagena, 1689.

2.4.72.11 Permit by the "Universidad de los cargadores a Indias" to Juan Barroso for the "Nuestra
Senora dela Misericordia" skipper Juan de Pedroso to sail twice with slaves from Santiago
de Caboverde to Cartagena or Puerto Velo without right of return, 1690.

2.4.72.12 Dutch translation of 2.4.72.11.
2.4.72.13 Declaration by Nicolas Porcio on request of Joan de Hertoghe c.s, with Jorge Uthof

owners of the ship "Santa Maria dela Misericordia", that it was sold in Cartagena as
further unfit for its task due to gross average on its voyage, 1690.

2.4.72.14 Dutch translation of 2.4.72.13.
2.4.72.15 Proxy by Juan Barroso del Pozo to his son-in-law Nicolas Porcio concerning the asiento

for the introduction of 10.000 tonelados of slaves in the Indies, 1690.
2.4.72.16 Dutch translation of 2.4.72.15.
2.4.72.17 Revenue stamp belonging to the act of Cauwenbergh etc. in the case of Pedro Smissaert

c.s. vs Joris Wthof, dated February 1694.
2.4.72.18 Process between Pedro Smissaert c.s. and Joris Wthof, 1694.
2.4.72.19 Jorgen Uthoff, merchant in Hamburgh testifies that he cannot find guarantors in Antwerp,

1694.
2.4.72.20 Testimony by Jorgen Uthof that he could not find a guarantor in his case against Pieter

Smissaert c.s. in Antwerp, 1694.
2.4.72.21 Copy of a letter by Jürgen Uthoff stating that Barassa Del Posso and his father signed a

false contract of purchase of the ship "La Misericordia" with Coymans & Cy in Cadiz,
1697.

2.4.73. Abraham de Hartogh, 1688
2.4.73.1 Testimony that some casks of figs shipped by Abraham de Hartogh from Rotterdam to

Theodor van der Meyden in Amsterdam were damaged by leakage of tar, 1688.



2.4.74. Dominicus Cramer, 1694-1697
2.4.74.1 Copies of the correspondence from Cadiz to Dominicus Cramer on seven packs of linen

dating from 22 March 1693 until 26 July 1694.
2.4.74.2 Extract from the invoice book of Dominicus Cramer merchant of Rotterdam about the

cargo in the ship of Jan Cornelissen Harinckfanger sailing to Malaga, 1696.
2.4.74.3 Extract from the invoice book of Dominicus Cramer, merchant of Rotterdam, 1696.
2.4.74.4 Letter by Jacob Dam to Vincent Basseliers stating that Jacob is part owner of cargo in the

ship "De Groote Visserij", captain Jan Cornelissen Haringvanger, 1697.
2.4.74.5 Copy of an invoice by Vincent Basseliers for primes to Jacob Danens on a policy dated 2

March 1696 on the ship "De Groote Vissery", captain Jan Cornelissen Harinckfanger,
sailing from Hellevoetsluis to Malaga, dated Rotterdam 2 March 1696, 1697.

2.4.75. Francisco Verhouve, 1697
2.4.75.1 Policy to Francisco Verhouve on silver in the ship "Capitane", sailing from Porto Velo to

Cadiz, 1697.

2.4.76. Ship “De Croon Dennemarcken”, 1697
2.4.76.1 Concept for a charter between Antwerp and Ghent merchants and Steffan Schacht, captain

of the ship "De Croon Dennemarcken", for an armed voyage with wine from Bordeaux to
Ostend in time of war. Antwerp, 1697.

2.4.77. Ship "Notre Dame Couronnée", 1697
2.4.77.1 Extract from the Admirality register in Dunkirk concerning the seizure of a ship "Notre

Dame Couronnée" by Andrée Bart on 20 November 1696 and of other ships. Dunkirk,
1697.11.20.

2.4.78. Jacomo de Pret, 1698-1701 [1723 director of the Generale Indische Compagnie]
2.4.78.1 Account by Francisco and Antonio Bretano & Cy for selling 761 Indian canes to Pieri,

1698.
2.4.78.2 Policy dated 10 November 1698 to Jacomo de Pret in Antwerp, on the ship "Ceurvorst van

Beieren", skipper Domenico Baldini, sailing from Amsterdam to Venice, 1698.
2.4.78.3 Bill of lading of the ship "Keurvorst van Beieren", skipper Domenico Baldini, sailing from

Texel to Venice with a case of Indian canes for Giulio Felice Pieri, 1698.
2.4.78.4 Dutch translations from the Latin and the Italian of testimonies by the crew on the

shipwreck of the "De Keurvorst van Beieren" captain Dominico Baldini, in the Gulf of
Taranto, dated Torre Mossa 3 April 1699.

2.4.78.5 Testimony by Domenico Baldini, captain, and Tomaso de Gasparo, owner of the cargo, on
the the shipwreck of the "Elettore di Baviera", whose cargo was heavily damaged, 1700.

2.4.78.6 Repartition of the average resulting from the shipwreck of the "Keurvorst van Beieren"
captain Domenico Baldini, near Gallipoli, 1700.

2.4.78.7 Account on the sale of 662 Indian canes from the shipwreck of the "Keurvorst van
Beieren", 1700.

2.4.78.8 Testimony by captain Dominico Baldini on the shipwreck of the "Keurvorst van Beieren"
on his return voyage from Holland, 1701.

2.4.78.9 Dutch translation from the Italian of a testimony by Pastoris de Carpanetto, partner in
Francisco &. Antonio Brentano & Cy on the owners of the ship "de Keurvorst van
Beieren", dated 20 May 1699, 1701.

2.4.78.10 Extract from the ledger of Francisco and Antonio Brentano & Cy of a debt by Giulio
Felice Pieri for 761 Indian canes, 1701.

2.4.78.11 Testimony by Dominico Baldini captain of the ship "de Keurvorst van Beieren" on average
at the shipwreck to the case of Indian canes for account of Giulio Felice Pieri, 1701.



2.4.79. Claude Louis de Surmont, 1699
2.4.79.1 Policy dated 12 October 1699 to Claude Louis de Surmont on the ship "St. Francesco

Xaverio", skipper Dirk Pieterse Abbekerk, sailing from Amsterdam to the Canaries, 1699.

2.4.80. Joan Baptista van Praet Wsone, 1699-1715
2.4.80.1 Policy dated 2 May 1699 to Joan Baptista van Praet Wsone in Antwerp on the ship "St. Jan

Baptista", skipper Adriaen Adriaensz, sailing from Zealand to the Gulf of Guinea and
back, 1699.

2.4.80.2 Testimonies by the insurers of the ship "St. Jan Battista" that they paid averages and by the
providers that the skipper came back as a passenger, 1700.

2.4.80.3 Testimony by Adriaen Adriaensen, former skipper of the "St. Jan Battista" dated 12 March
1700 and by some sailors that the ship was seized by the English trading on the Gambia,
1700.

2.4.80.4 Agreement between Jan Baptista van Praet & Soon part owners of the ship "St. Jan
Battista" and Vincent Basseliers c.s insurers to submit their differences to arbitrators
Daniel Vernimmen and Ferdinando Wils, and decision in favour of the owners, 1703.

2.4.80.5 Testimony by Dominicus Cramer and three other merchants of Rotterdam concerning the
currency on the Canaries, 1705.

2.4.80.6 Testimony by Mattheo Francisco Bal, who traded for Joan Battista de Praet & Son, and
Joan Jacomo Haecx, on the currency on the Canaries, 1705.

2.4.80.7 Letter stating that an insurer refused to pay because the ship "St. Jan Battista" of captain
Adriaan Adriaanse was seized by the English, 1706.

2.4.80.8 Legal advice from Rotterdam, Middelburg and Amsterdam stating that insurers must pay if
a ship sailing from Zealand to Guinea is taken by the English Africa Company although it
was insured "Vrij van de Westindische Compagnie", 1706-1714.

2.4.80.9 Jacomo Andrea gets leave to summon the heirs of Balthazar Bosschaert to the
"extraordinaris rolle" for refusal of payment on the policy on the ship "St. Jan Baptista" of
his late father Jan Baptista van Praet, 1715.

2.4.81. West-Indian Company, 1700-1701
2.4.81.1 Assessment of the ship "de Son" on request of the W.I.C. Chamber Amsterdam, as

charterers, and the owners, 1700.
2.4.81.2 Charter dated 7 September 1700 between the managers of the W.I.C. Chamber Amsterdam

and the owners of the ship "De Son", Jan Everijn Glimmer and Jacob Dortman, for a
voyage to Elmina, Ardra and Curaçao; label, 1701.

2.4.82. Arnoldo de Haese, 1704-1705
2.4.82.1 Policy dated 8 March 1704 to Jacques Meyrs on merchandise in the ship "Catharina",

skipper Pieter Franse, sailing from Rotterdam and back, 1704.
2.4.82.2 Policy to Arnold de Haze in Antwerp on cargo in the ship "Catharina van Rotterdam",

captain Pieter Francke Bourgonge, sailing from the Canaries to Rotterdam; inventory of
the trial on the back, 1704.

2.4.82.3 Policy dated 10 June 1704 to Patrick Harper on cargo in the ship "Catharina", skipper
Pieter Fransen, sailing from the Canaries to Amsterdam or Rotterdam, 1704.

2.4.82.4 Abandonment of the ship "Catharina van Rotterdam", captain Pieter Franse Bourgogne, by
Arnoldo de Haese in Antwerp, 1704.

2.4.82.5 Dutch translation of the current account for the ship "Catharina van Rotterdam" at the time
of the seizure, from the books of the High Court of the Admirality of Scotland, dated 14
June 1704.

2.4.82.6 Testimony by Jacques Meyers and Patrick Harpert on policies on the "Catharina van
Rotterdam", captain Pieter Franse, sailing from the Canaries and seized by the High Court
of Admirality of Scotland, 1704.



2.4.82.7 Verdict by the High Court of Admirality in Edinburgh, dated 19 August 1704, that the ship
"Catharina van Rotterdam", captain Pieter Francke Bourgonge, is a good prize, 1704.

2.4.82.8 Testimony by Jacques Meyers and Patrick Harper before Aldermen of Rotterdam that they
don't have the the bill of lading of the ship "Catharina van Rotterdam" which was seized
by the high court of Scotland, 1705.

2.4.83. Newfoundland cod, 1704-1708
2.4.83.1 Dondarraleux borrowed from Pierre Fossande 531 pounds on the ship "La Vierge Marie"

for the voyage to Terreneuve. As the cod on the home-voyage was partly spoilt by the
weather he will cut down on the loan as he did on the pay, 1704.

2.4.83.2 Testimony before the Admirality of Bayonne by captain Marsans de Gastelussar and crew
of the "Saint Esprit" that returning with cod from Terreneuve their ship was seized by the
English near the Azores, 1706.

2.4.83.3 Massans De Gasteluçar, captain of the "Saint Esprit" was captured in 1706 on the
homeward voyage from Terreneuve. He knows that Pierre de Lassalle borrowed 500
pounds á la grosse avantage on the ship from Pierre Fossans, 1707.

2.4.83.4 Owners cut down 3% on two contrats de grosse of 1.200 pounds each by Pierre Fossans on
their ship "La Thoresse" because the cod on the homeward voyage from Terreneuve was
spoilt by bad weather, 1707.

2.4.83.5 Declarations by the three owners of "Le Cerf Couronné" that they charged Marsant de
Haraneder to go fishing near Terreneuve, 1707. See also Forchoudt, Special Collections
201.

2.4.83.6 Division of the average on the ship "Le Cerf Couronné" captain Marsans de Haraneder that
was seized by the English on its homeward voyage from Terreneuve, 1708.

2.4.83.7 Declarations by Joanis Daguerre pilot in Saint Jean de Luz and Charles d' Etcheverry,
contremaitre de navire, before the Lieutenant-General in Bayonne about damage to the
ship "Le Cerf Couronné" of Marsans de Haranedio, 1708.

2.4.83.8 Marsans de Haranedéo declares before the Lieutenant-General in Bayonne that his ship
"Le Cerf Couronné" that sailed on 23 March to Terreneuve was ransomed and on the
homeward voyage the cod was spoiled by bad weather, 1708.

2.4.84. Ship “Le baux yeux d'encor laide”, 1706
2.4.84.1 The ship "Le baux yeux d'encor laide" of skipper Pierre Fleurz had a cargo of wine from

Nantes to Bruges without bill of lading. It was detained in Dunkirk. Since after 12 July
nobody in Flanders had any interest in its cargo it will be auctioned, 1706.

2.4.85. Jacob van Wieten, 1706
2.4.85.1 Policy dated 9 March 1706 to Jacob van Wieten on hides in the ship "Abraham

Offerhaude", skipper Abraham Jansz, sailing from Kingshall to Rotterdam, 1706.

2.4.86. Ignatius and Carlo van Honsem, 1706-1707 [see also Cornelis de Wael]
2.4.86.1 Bill of lading for the "San Francisco", captain Cornelis Nebbens, sailing from Amsterdam

to Lisbon, 1706.
2.4.86.2 Extract from a letter by Ignatius and Carlo van Honsem that the "San Francisco" is

certainly seized in La Coruña, but captain Cornelis did not yet turn up. They advise to pay
averages and send the bill of lading, 1707.

2.4.86.3 Testimony by Cornelis and Bastiaen Nebbens on the seizure of the "San Francisco",
sailing from Texel to Lisbon, by a privateer from San Sebastian, 1707.

2.4.86.4 Testimony concerning the seizure of the "San Francisco" of captain Cornelis Nebbens
before the coast of Portugal, 1707.



2.4.87. Jacques Schenaerts, 1712-1713 [director of a predecessor of the Generale Indische
Compagnie]
2.4.87.1 Policy dated 7 May 1712 to Jacques Schenaerts in Antwerp on the ship "l'Oiseau de Grue",

skipper Andries Radke, sailing from Nantes to Rotterdam, 1712.
2.4.87.2 Invoice for 40 casks of wine shipped from Nantes by Duclos Bretet in the ship "l'Oiseau de

Proye" (!), skipper Andries Radke, on consignment of Jacques Schenaert in Antwerp,
1712.

2.4.87.3 Copy of the bill of lading of the ship "l'Oiseau de Proye" (!), signed 30 April 1712 by
skipper Andries Radke and of the invoice by Duclos Bretet signed Nantes 15 June 1712.

2.4.87.4 Settlement of the ransom for the ship "De Wakende Kraanvogel" and its cargo between
Cau and Eversdijk representing the States of Zealand, Gilles Thijssen representing the
owners, and skipper Andries Radke, 1712.

2.4.87.5 Testimony before Aldermen of Veere by the crew of the ship "De Wakende Kraanvogel"
from Danzig, captain Andries Radke, sailing from Nantes, that the ship has twice been
raided and that wine was taken, 1712.

2.4.87.6 Andries Radke gets permission to depart with his ship "De Waakende Kraanvogel" since a
ransom is settled for the capture of his ship, 1712.

2.4.87.7 Account by Gillis Thijssen as agent for the owners of the cargo in the ship "De Wakende
Kraanvogel" from Danzig that was seized in Veere, 1712.

2.4.87.8 Current account by Jan van Meel on 40 casks of wine ransomed in Veere from the ship
"l'Oiseau de Proye" (!) of Andries Radke and sold in Rotterdam, 1712.

2.4.87.9 Testimony before aldermen of Veere by cooper Abraham Wisse who sent 40 casks of wine
from the ship "De Wakende Kraanvogel" by order of Gillis Thijssen to Rotterdam, 1713.

2.4.88. Ship "Neptune", 1729
2.4.88.1 Bottomry by Joannes Combes, Joannes Ley, and Joannes Combes Junior on the

"Neptune", sailing from Cadiz to the East Indies, captain Joannes Christophel Blanco, to
Pieter Spendelow of Ostend. Cadiz, 1729.03.30.

2.4.89. Middelburgse Commercie Compagnie, 1731
2.4.89.1 Plea in the case between François de Wilde, trading for account of the Commercie

Compagnie, against Jacomo Vernimmen and other insurers and legal advice to the effect
that he must show an order to insure the cargo, 1731.

2.4.90. Laurens van Eersel, 1742
2.4.90.1 Policy dated 11 April 1742 to Laurens van Eersel on a packet of lace in the ship

"Lelijhoff", skipper Pieter Zuijdewint, sailing from Amsterdam to Lisbon, 1742.

2.4.91. Hendrik Veerman, 1752
2.4.91.1 Policy dated 12 January 1752 to Hendrik Veerman on a case of lace in the ship

"Rotterdams Welvaren", skipper Pieter Sipkes, sailing from Rotterdam to Rouen, 1752.

2.4.92. Jasper Atkinson, 1757
2.4.92.1 Policy dated 22 July 1757 to Jasper Atkinson on cargo in the ship "Anna Tecla", skipper

Reeneman, sailing from Marseille to Le Havre, 1757.

2.4.93. Johan Clemens & Soon, 1760
2.4.93.1 Policy dated Amsterdam 22 September 1760 to Johan Clemens & Soon on cargo in the

ship "Vrouwe Anna Maria", skipper Andreas Rasmussen, sailing from Copenhagen to
Danzig.

2.4.94. Charles Louis Desrousseaux and Joseph Morel, 1796 (-1803)
2.4.94.1 Proxy for Charles Louis Desrousseaux, 1796.



2.4.94.2 Proxy by merchants in Ghendt to unload the "Jesu Nazareno" in Ostend, 1796.
2.4.94.3 De la Sota and Desrousseaux c.s. will submit to settlement by the Justice of the Peace,

1796.
2.4.94.4 Settlement by the Justice of the Peace in Ostend between Charles Louis Desrousseaux and

Joseph Morel, charterers, and Mariano de la Sota, captain of the "Jesu Nazareno"
concerning the costs if a charter is cancelled in time of war, 1796.

2.4.94.5 Notes from the Ordinances on coastal trade of October 18th 1740 and 1681.
2.4.94.6 Note from an order by the government on coastal trade, dated 5 March 1803.

2.4.95. Compagnie d'Assurance de Lille, 1803
2.4.95.1 Policy by the "Compagnie d'assurance de Lille" to NN on wine in the ship "l'Inattendu",

skipper Diedrichsen, sailing from Sête to Antwerp, 1803.

2.4.96. Average verdicts, 1804
2.4.96.1 Average verdicts concerning the American ship "Anna Maria", captain Jonathan Coffin

Rathbone, wrecked in the Bay of Gibraltar and of the Prussian ship "Vrouw Falke",
captain Mathieu Veldhuis, arriving from Emden, 1804.

2.4.97. Ship "San Antonio", 1843
2.4.97.1 Bill of lading by Joaquin Sluck, skipper on the "San Antonio", sailing from Benicarlo to

Alicante. Benicarlo, 1843.04.09.

2.4.98. Letzer Rijck & Co against Maas, 1899
2.4.98.1 Verdict by the Commercial Court between the towing-company Letzer Rijck & Cy in

Antwerp and NV Stoombootonderneming "Maas" in Rotterdam on the collision between
the ships "Johny" and "Maas". Antwerp, 1899.09.19.

2.4.99. Others
2.4.99.1 Policy without date to mr. Laurenceau jr. on 16 sacks of cotton in the ship "Neptune",

skipper J. Koster, sailing from Paimbeuf to Bruges.
2.4.99.2 Letter concerning the ship "Marienborch", owners Jacques Cole and Mathys Diercxsone,

sailing from Newcastle to the fair in Antwerp or Bergen op Zoom and seized by burghers
of Rouen.

2.4.99.3 Current account for partners in the ship "La Purissima Conception" and the bankruptcy of
the firm Tyrry.

2.4.99.4 List of shareholders and in how far they have furnished the required collateral. Brussels,
1789.01.01.

2.4.100. Certificates of registry, 1800-1810
2.4.100.1 Certificate of registry by the Preußische Kriegs- und Domänencammer in Ostfriesland for

the ship "De Vriendschap", owners O. Chr. Swart and Ul. Whl. Bertram from Emden,
skipper Johann Reinecke. Aurich, 1800.04.07.

2.4.100.2 Certificate of registry by the Preußische Kriegs- und Domänencammer in Ostfriesland for
the ship "Die 2 gute Freunde", skipper Cornelius Dievoorst. Aurich, 1801.10.05.

2.4.100.3 Certificate of registry by the Prussian king Friedrich Wilhelm III for the ship
"Standhaftigkeit", skipper Johann Boysen. Altenstettin, 1807.06.07.

2.4.100.4 Certificate of registry by the Prussian King Friedrich Wilhelm III for the brig "Diana",
skipper Gerd Jansen. Altenstettin, 1810.03.05.

2.4.100.5 Exemption from the embargo to Ephraim Hubbel captain of the ship "Jans" sailing from
Lisbon to Antwerp, signed by minister of finance Gogel and king Louis Napoleon. Annex
a note by Velle on Louis Napoleon and a clipping from the auction list. The Hague,
1807.02.17.


